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Our Vision
HIES

Be a leading global
company that consistently
provides product
innovation and creates
values that enhance
people’s quality of life.
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Our Mission

FRAPIRY D

@ expanding global presence through strengthening
distribution network and leveraging international
partnership.

4 creating innovative products and services by
application of new technology and unique design with
high quality, user-friendliness and cost-effectiveness.

% investing in Oregon Scientific brand through research
& development, creative marketing and people
development.

4 driving business excellence to create the highest value
to exceed the expectations of our customers, partners,
employees and shareholders.
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IDT, established in 1977, is a leader in the design,

development, manufacturing, marketing and

distribution of lifestyle consumer electronic products

through the application of innovative LCD and
o microprocessor technology under three main
categories: LCD consumer electronic products;
electronic learning products and telecommunications
products.

In the past 35 years, IDT's reputation and corporate
image have grown in international markets. IDT's
own brand “Oregon Scientific” has become widely
recognised around the world. Its innovative products
have gained a high degree of recognition and
consumer confidence for enhancing their quality of
living.

BeijingfChina
n‘lﬂb y

/ @"J/apan BZs

Wangzhousehingy7> f ¢
Ea[E N @ 'Sh,anghai, China IDT International Limited was listed on The Stock
, China f HhE L Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1988 (Stock Code:
REE @ 167).

Hong Kong, China
T RS IDT operates 13 wholly owned marketing and

DT’
-
distribution subsidiaries in 10 countries around the

/% world. Our business presence has been established in

over 35 countries through distributors.
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Group Financial Summary
SEITHEE

RESULTS e

Year ended March 31,
HE=A=1t-HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BEEET BEBET BEEET

Turnover GEE 1,623.6 1,394.9 1,720.7 2,1125
(Loss) profit before taxation RRT(EE) %H (45.6) (91.7) 385 62.7
Taxation fig (1.6) (63.3) (7.2) (41.5)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (E8E) %M (47.2) (155.0) 31.3 21.2
Attributable to: DA :
Owners of the Company ViN/NCTEZ =N (49.6) (138.2) 24.6 17.5
Non-controlling interests JEIERRRER 24 (16.8) 6.7 3.7
(47.2) (155.0) 313 21.2
(Loss) earning per share ik (E18) &BF
— Basic and diluted —EAREE G IEE | (1.98) HK cents (5.53)HK cents  0.98 HK cents ~ 0.70 HK cents
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at March 31,
R=ZA=+—H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER BEEET BEEET BEEET BEBET
Total assets BEE 1,017.6 1,234.6 1,478.7 1,610.0 1,820.4
Total liabilities FEV= (440.4) (613.0) (666.2) (611.7) (765.8)

577.2 621.6 812.5 998.3 1,054.6

Equity attributable to owners AR AHEA A

of the Company FE(RHERS 621.5 625.5 7473 793.7
Non-controlling interests R 0.1 187.0 251.0 260.9
621.6 812.5 998.3 1,054.6
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Corporate Information
NAEIER

DIRECTORS

Executive:
Raymond Chan, JP, Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley

Independent Non-Executive:
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Kao Ying Lun

Jack Schmuckli

Kenichi Ohmae

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Raymond Chan, JP, Chairman
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony, Chairman
Kao Ying Lun
Jack Schmuckli

NOMINATION AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Jack Schmuckli, Chairman
Kao Ying Lun
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Jack Schmuckli, Chairman
Kao Ying Lun
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley

COMPANY SECRETARY
Fung Yee Man

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
BNP Paribas

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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SOLICITOR

Bermuda:
Conyers Dill & Pearman

SHARE REGISTRARS

Bermuda:

HSBC Securities Services (Bermuda) Limited
6 Front Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong:

Union Registrars Limited

18/F., Fook Lee Commercial Centre
Town Place

33 Lockhart Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

BERMUDA REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Block C, 9th Floor, Kaiser Estate
41 Man Yue Street

Hunghom

Kowloon

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
167

WEBSITES

www.idthk.com
www.oregonscientific.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
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Corporate Structure
NGIE S

IDT INTERNATIONAL
LIMITED
ERERERLIF

Bermuda BRZE

Value Manufacturing
Services (VMS) Oregon Scientific (OS)

BEERERL

| LCD ansumer Electronic Telecommunications Sales &fl}/'larketlng
E ec’fio;n:ﬁ;;cgiucts Learning Products Products %?E};f_sia
i ETHBER BHER e
B HEEM EENSE

IDT Electronic IDT Communication -
IDT Technology Limited Products Limited Technology Limited Oregon Scientific Global
ERBERA A BREFIH BRUEARHE '?'LStr'bUt'O\” L'mfid
Hong Kong &7 BRAF] BRARE B IR R AR A
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Chairman’s
atement

FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the Group's
annual result for the year ended March 31, 2012.

RESULTS

Despite the high degree of uncertainties in economies around the world
and persistent weak consumer sentiment, the Group’s total revenue stood
at HK$1,597.1 million, a mild decrease of 2%. Gross profit was HK$484.5
million compared to HK$532.7 million in the previous year. Due to the
changes in the product and channel mix and an increase in raw materials
and manufacturing costs as well as clearance sales of some slow moving
inventories, gross profit margin dropped by 3% to 30%. Due to the Group's
effective cost controlling measures including operational restructuring,
business streamlining and stringent cost controls, operating expense was
reduced by 5% to HK$518.5 million. The net loss attributable to owners of
the company was significantly reduced by 39% to HK$30.4 million compared
to the net loss of HK$49.6 million in the previous year.

Initiatives aimed at improvement were taken to enhance manufacturing
services, negotiation of commercial trade terms and operating efficiency. The
Group's balance sheet was in a healthy position, with shorter turnaround
times for inventory and accounts receivable, contributing to a healthier cash
flow in operations. The Group maintained a zero net debt position and total
borrowings were reduced with improved liquidity compared to last year.

IDT International Limited BE B AR AT
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OUTLOOK

The financial crisis in the EURO zone countries continues to impact the global
economy as well as consumer confidence. In most major western countries
where we operate, the economies remain sluggish with uncertain prospects.
The consensus economic growth forecasts have come down, and the recent
steep downturn in global financial markets have reinforced the disappointing
trend. At the same time, the rising costs of both labour and materials continue
to place pressure on the costs of goods as well as profit margins. The Group is
continuing to take proactive measures to strive for business improvement. Key
initiatives in this direction include:

o Realignment of key product categories and reallocation of resources to
maximise sales and reduction of costs;

o Introduction and investment in new innovative products and expansion
to new markets to secure new sources of revenue;

o Focus on investment in and developing China and other emerging
markets to capture new business opportunities and extend our reach;

o Streamline our overseas organisational structure and internal operations
to reduce operating costs and expenses;

o Continue to focus on establishing global core e-commerce expertise to
manage e-commerce websites; enhance on-line marketing and web
content to ensure consistency; and maximise and leverage the growth
potential of this developing market channel.

To face the challenges of the sluggish global economy, the Group intends
to continue its focus on execution of its restructuring strategy and new
business models; streamlining operating costs and overhead to strengthen
cash flow position; and maximising product margins. Through the efforts
of our management team, we aim at strengthening our fundamentals and
processes during bad times thereby paving the way to achieve a substantial
improvement in business once the market rebounds.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my gratitude to our
shareholders and business associates for the continued support. | also extend
our appreciation to our management team and staff members for their hard
work and dedication during the past financial year.

Raymond Chan, Jp

Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer

June 28, 2012
Hong Kong
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Operations Review

E 3B

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The recovery of the global economy has lagged, continuing to be buffeted
by various unfavourable financial and political trends during the year under
review. For the year ended March 31, 2012, the Group's total turnover
was HK$1,597.1 million, only a slight decrease of 2% when compared
to HK$1,623.6 million recorded last year in view of the difficult operating
conditions in the retail market. The revenue of Oregon Scientific (“OS")
branded products declined by 6% to HK$743.7 million, whilst the revenue of
ODM/OEM products increased by 3% to HK$853.4 million.

Gross profit was HK$484.5 million compared to HK$532.7 million in the
same period last year. Gross margin was 30%, a drop of 3 percentage points
as a result of changes in product and channel mix, increases in labour and
materials costs and sales of slow moving inventory with lower margins.

The research and development expense was HK$85.0 million. The investment
in R&D stood at 5% of the Group’s total revenue and is a critical factor to
drive our growth by enabling us to create innovative and stylish products.

Bt %5 O R
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With stringent cost controls in place, distribution and selling expenditures
decreased by 7% to HK$247.1 million, representing 15% of the Group’s
total revenue, compared to HK$266.1 million last year. General administrative
expenditures were reduced by 3% to HK$186.4 million, representing 12%
of Group's total revenue, same as last year. Other non-operating losses were
reduced to HK$6.4 million from HK$39.2 million last year, as net exchange
losses of HK$2.6 million have been substantially improved against the losses
of HK$10.8 million recorded last year, and impairment losses recognised in
respect of financial instruments also substantially dropped to HK$7.3 million
from HK$15.8 million recorded last year.

Total operating expenditures of the Group, including other gains and losses,
research and development costs, distribution and selling expenses, and
general administrative costs amounted to HK$524.9 million, a reduction of
10% against HK$583.7 million recorded last year. Total operating expenses
as a percentage of the Group’s total revenue were 33%, down 3 percentage
points when compared to the proportion of 36% recorded last year.

Interest expenses for banks and other borrowings amounted to HK$6.4
million, down by 10% as compared to HK$7.1 million last year, largely
because of a reduction in bank borrowings.

Taxation amounted to HK$5.1 million compared to HK$1.6 million last year
due to the increase in tax provision for Hong Kong profits tax and deferred
tax charges that were made during the year.

The overall attributable loss after tax for the year was significantly reduced to
HK$30.4 million from HK$49.6 million, a 39% improvement compared to the
loss in the previous year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Oregon Scientific

Sales revenues from the OS brand were HK$743.7 million, 47% of the
Group's total revenue, and declining by 6% compared to HK$791.7 million
last year. The decrease was mainly due to the sluggish market environment in
the European and US markets, resulting from generally conservative customers
of the Group and consumer purchasing sentiment. However, the performance
in the Asia Pacific region, accounting for 22% of OS revenue, recorded a
growth of 23% to HK$161.8 million.

Despite a decline of sales revenue within some traditional OS business product
categories such as LCD products and Electronic Learning Products, the
newly developed Health and Wellness and Sports and Fitness product series
contributed 22% of total OS revenue, up by 7% to HK$163.8 million. The
Health and Wellness and Sports and Fitness lines are successfully promoting
the new concept of OS “Smart Living” product categories as they have been
well received by the markets.
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As part of restructuring our product mix, OS products will be regrouped
and separated into different product categories, namely Time and Weather;
Sports, Fitness & Health; Wellness and Beauty; Electronic Learning Products;
and Others. The Time and Weather and Electronic Learning Products series,
along with the former LCD product line, remain the core OS-branded product
categories.

In the Time & Weather category, OS has developed new products
incorporating the “QI” wireless charging technology, designed to become one
of the major accessories catering for the existing and future smart phones.
Another innovation is the new remote access weather station product series,
riding on Internet technologies, emphasizing the wireless function and
portability. Stylish personal accessories, such as smart watches, with time and
updated weather information functions are also to be launched shortly.

Sports, Fitness and Health products are set to become one of the key
product categories for OS in the near future. Following the success of the
differentiated women’s sports and fitness products, OS is focusing on
the ATC (action camera) product line which utilise low energy Bluetooth
technology. The innovation has been recognised in the industry as the “ATC
Chameleon” action camera featuring a unique dual lens design has won the
Red Dot Design Award. The “ATC X" featuring instant Wi-Fi video playback,
GPS, G-sensor and heart-rate monitor is to be officially launched to further
strengthen the entire Sports, Fitness and Health product portfolio.

The Wellness & Beauty product category continues its strong growth
momentum within Asia Pacific markets. OS is concentrating on developing
innovative Wellness & Beauty products to expand its award-winning aroma
diffuser and air sanitiser series to capture the growth potential within the
region. The new NanoActiv Skin Restoring System, applying the advanced
Nano-Cyclone Technology, has won the IF product design award (2012), the
HKEIA award on innovations and technology (2012) and has been selected
as one of the finalists in the Hong Kong Award for Industries (2012). OS
is confident that the sales of Wellness & Beauty products will contribute
significant sales growth.
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In response to the overall sales decline in the children’s laptops market, OS
will introduce the new Wi-Fi enabled kid tablet (“MEEP™"), a 7-inch color
touch screen tablet running the Android operating system and offering music,
movies, e-books and various educational and infotainment applications for
children. MEEP™ was also displayed at the TIA 109th American International
Toy Fair. In addition, within the Electronic Learning Products category, a brand
new Smart Globe, with Wi-Fi technology and a stylish new appearance, is to
be launched shortly to extend the success of the Smart Globe product series.

OS’ marketing strategy focuses on promoting its brand image guided by the
“Smart Living” concept, both online and offline. OS flagship stores in Hong
Kong, China and Italy have been renovated to reflect its new design concept
and reinforce this image. To effectively address the growing importance
of e-commerce, OS has invested in software applications to improve user
interface and overall efficiency of our website and e-shop environment to
enhance product sales through this channel. Last year, OS has integrated
customer services for USA, Australia and Asia under a single service provider
to bolster customer relations management by upgrading the standard of
customer service and customer database management. The enhanced
customer services integration for Europe will be implemented during the new
financial year.

Value Manufacturing Services

Sales revenues contributed by the Value Manufacturing Services Division
("VMS") was HK$853.4 million, 53% of the Group's total revenue, up by 3%
compared to HK$831.9 million achieved last year. The increase demonstrated
the support of its ODM/OEM customers who recognise its strong technical
competence, well managed manufacturing capabilities and excellent
engineering support in new product development.

In terms of business segment performance, LCD products recorded a growth
of 15% to HK$592.4 million compared to last year despite pressures on
prices, raw materials and increase in manufacturing costs. Sales revenues of
Electronic Learning Products also grew by 24% to HK$95.1 million riding on
new product innovation leading to stronger support of customers. However,
the sales revenues of Telecommunication and other products declined by 31%
to HK$165.9 million due to the gradual elimination of low margin products.
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VMS forecasts growth in the Sports, Fitness and Health product category and
has invested in developing the technology platforms for Healthcare, Energy
Monitoring and Management products, following the increase in demand and
in step with wider awareness of an “Environmentally Friendly” and a “Smart
Living” lifestyle.

WORKING CAPITAL

The inventory balance at March 31, 2012 was HK$253.5 million, decreased
by 14% compared to the HK$295.7 million at March 31, 2011. The decrease
is mainly due to continuous improvement in supply chain management. The
inventory turnover improved from 99 days recorded last year, to 83 days this
year.

Trade debtor balances at March 31, 2012 was HK$159.1 million, down by
17% compared to the HK$192.2 million shown at March 31, 2011 and this
improvement is attributable to negotiation of commercial trade terms and
improved collection capability for the year. Trade debtor’s turnover reduced to
36 days compared to that of last year of 43 days.

LIQUIDITY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT

At March 31, 2012, the cash and bank balances of the Group, including the
short term bank deposits, were HK$337.5 million (March 31, 2011: HK$415.1
million).

During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Group generated its funds mainly
from operating activities and bank borrowings. The net cash position (cash
and bank balances less total bank borrowings and bills payables) at March 31,
2012 amounted to HK$145.5 million (March 31, 2011: HK$103.3 million).
The Group maintained sufficient financial resources to meet all working
capital requirements and finances of its commitments and still has a surplus of
net cash over all bank borrowings.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency stems mainly from the net cash
flow and net working capital translation achieved in its overseas subsidiaries.
Hedging of foreign currency exposures is arranged through a combination of
natural hedges and forward forex contracts. At March 31, 2012, there were
forward contracts in place to hedge against possible exchange movements of
future net cash flows. Speculative currency transactions are strictly prohibited.
Management of currency risk is the responsibility of the Group’s headquarters
in Hong Kong.
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DEBTS AND GEARING RATIO

The total bank borrowings of the Group at March 31, 2012 reduced to
HK$192.0 million (March 31, 2011: HK$311.8 million) which consisted of
the short term bank loans of HK$102.0 million and long term bank loans of
HK$90.0 million. The borrowings are mainly denominated in HK Dollars and
on a floating rates bases.

The debts incurred by the Group are mainly used for general corporate
purposes, including capital or long term expenditures and working capital
requirements.

Then gearing ratio (total borrowings over total equity) at March 31, 2012 and
March 31, 2011 were approximately 33% and 50% respectively.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

At March 31, 2012, there were no finance charges on the Group’s assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for the year ended
March 31, 2012 amounted to HK$16.6 million (2011: HK$28.1 million) which
was all used for business operations and product development. Source of
funds were financed by internal resources and borrowings.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies in the course of the year ended March 31, 2012.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended March 31, 2012.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At March 31, 2012, the Group had no contingent liabilities (2011: nil).
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at March 31, 2012, the Group had about 3,066 employees. The Group
fully recognizes the importance of its employees who contribute significantly
to its success and continues to maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its
workforce by providing them with adequate and regular training.

The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages at
market rates which reward individual's performance and attract, retain
and motivate high quality employees. The compensation packages offered
by the Group are comparable with other organizations of similar size and
business nature and are reviewed annually. The components of employee’s
remuneration package consist of base salary, double pay, fringe benefits
including pension scheme, medical insurance, life and personal accident
insurance, employee compensation and business travel insurance as well as
incentives like discretionary cash bonus and the opportunities to participate in
the Group’s share option schemes.

Details of the schemes and the number of options granted to the Group’s
employees are set out in note 27 to the financial statements from page 104
to page 109. Details of pension schemes operated by the Group are set out
in the note 33 to the financial statements on page 119. In Xixiang, Shenzhen,
China where the Xixiang Facilities are located, staff welfare rates are set with
reference to the prevailing labour laws in China. Accommodation and leisure
facilities are also provided to local staff at Xixiang Facilities.

The Group’s remuneration philosophy for executive directors and senior
executives is based upon creating a strong link between performance and
reward in accordance with the following principles:

1. Fixed salaries and benefits are set at median-market level against
comparator groups of companies selected on the basis of similar size
and business nature and benchmarked with the prevailing market
conditions; and

2. Performance-related bonus is linked to the achievement of pre-defined

performance targets including financial targets, performance index and
pre-agreed management objectives.
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The emolument of the directors is recommended by the remuneration
committee with reference to companies of comparable business type or scale,
and the nature and quantity of work at both Board and Board Committee
levels (including frequency of meetings and nature of agenda items) in order
to compensate directors reasonably for their time and efforts spent. The
directors’ emolument is approved by the Board pursuant to the mandate
granted by the shareholders at annual general meetings. It comprises of five
components, namely base salary, benefits, annual performance-related bonus,
share options and pension scheme. In addition, each director is paid a basic
director’s fee for his/her service as director of the Company. Additional fees
are paid to a director for appointment as a member of a particular committee.
Non-executive directors receive no base pay, benefits, bonus or pension
except director’'s fee and reimbursement for expenses incurred in connection
with their directorship of the Company. No individual director is allowed to
participate in the procedures for deciding his/her individual remuneration
package. Full details of the remuneration of and fees paid to the directors
in the year ended March 31, 2012 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements on page 83. All directors are entitled to participate in the share
option schemes of the Company. Details of the schemes and the number of
options granted to directors of the Company are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements from page 104 to page 109.

Raymond Chan, JP
Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer

June 28, 2012
Hong Kong
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Employee Development and Social Responsibilities

ETIREHEYEESET

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

We are experiencing inevitable change with the economic volatility,
competition and complexity of the business environment. Rather than cutting
training budgets, the Corporate T&D Dept has sought employee development
with more impact closely aligned to our corporate objectives and new
business model, aiming at driving the business and engaging the workforce,
building talents and leaders for TODAY and TOMORROW, and developing a
high performing learning culture that advances business results.

LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT

We focus on equipping leaders of all levels to enhance team effectiveness
and staff engagement. Management tools such as a balanced scorecard and
360 degree feedback survey are used to drive performance and leadership
excellence. Adapted from Gallup Consulting, the great workplace survey
is also conducted for all staff every 6 months to measure the level of staff
engagement. Follow-up workshops to share best practices and various
leadership programs on organizational effectiveness through team dynamics,
performance management, and coaching skill are provided to ensure
continuous improvement.

SALES WORKSHOPS

We strongly believe experiential learning is the most effective approach
for competency development. Based on the business requirements, we
have developed a sales program with special attention to topics on order
processing, negotiation skill, and role of business development in handling
commercial agreements. We have also customized a sales training program
for our China sales team. In addition to the strategic workshops on the
business model and strategies, all participants are required to complete 2 full-
days of practical training at our retail shops.

IDT International Limited BE B AR A F

ETHR

BEELBRIATE - BF AT ISRBEM - P
NRERER - HAAEEBRERHHERN - 5 k3
RAHEL TR ZABUE - HBEMBERNEAES A
T REEBEFRAATFRKEH B —EG
BHEE X -

HERRE

BMEIERSBAR2EEEN  UINEERRERE
IHRAE - BANALZEEIE L EHIERNERESRSE
7 BEFELES RM360EREFE - BIITRMAN
RESRLTHANRNBSALT BB TEITEE
MANPELEEALT  FHEETHETHERARE £
RABERIZE  FRUSHE  TREEBERR
2 WEKEDRE - BB E NI G BRI -

SHEEI

BMREEREESRAAM Bt - BAIRFT &
FISHE TIRITSHBRT R0 IRIETE - MHIIRTT - A%

AR% - RIFE AT D EEREHTAEIRE B
T SRR RIS -
BB -

FIRBI AN T EEHETRRES

Annual Report 2012 F %R



SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group has been actively promoting awareness of social responsibilities
to our employees. The CSR Volunteer team has reached 160 active members
with a total of 3,555 serving hours. We have served over 400 people in
need and earned 8 merit prizes. Since 2005, the Group has been bestowed
the award of the “Caring Company Logo” for the 7th consecutive year by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of our care for the
community.

CARE FOR THE COMMUNITY

Facing the trend of an aging population in Hong Kong, there has been
tremendous demand of elderly service. Partnering with Hong Kong Sheng
Kung Hui, we pay regular home visits, birthday parties & outings for elderly
in Wong Tai Sin who live alone and suffer from chronic disease or physical
handicap. This program which aims to restore resilience and confidence in
the Elderly through showing them care and concern has been conducted
consecutively for over 2 years.

Disabled or retarded children are another target group we serve. The Firefly
Life Education Program is co-organized by Caritas Lokkan School. We visit
their Tin Shui Wai campus every month to serve the severe grade mentally
handicapped students who stay at the dormitory without any chance
interacting with outsiders.

The Group has also donated products and cash to organizations such as
Youth Outreach, the Society For The Welfare Of The Autistic Persons, and
St James Settlement to support their charitable programs. We have also
supported a wide range of fund-raising programs such as the Sowers Action
Challenging and the Heifer Race to Feed.
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EMPLOYEE WELLNESS

Experts of various disciplines were invited to deliver Lunch & Learn sessions
in various interests, such as yoga, Taichi, book appreciation and magic show.
Staff members were also sponsored to take part in runs and hikes to maintain
their health and fitness levels. Social, recreational and charitable programs
such as New Hire Lunch Gathering, Annual Outing, Christmas Party, Annual
Dinner and Charity Lunch Party were held to enhance internal communication
and affirm a sense of belonging.

POVERTY ALLEVIATED AT GUIZHOU

Started from May, 2011, we have been launching the “Caring Egg Scheme
— a dietary supplement program for deprived kids. We provide 280 full-time
students an egg on
every Monday and
Friday. In addition, we
launched the Dental
Hygiene Education
Program which aims
to formulate a healthy
lifestyle and develop
a habit of personal
hygiene maintenance.

”

EDUCATION SPONSORSHIP

To promote the awareness of design value and to enhance the expertise of
the design professionals and business students, we also offer sponsorships to
student projects, contests, and leadership programs. The “PolyU Innovation &
Entrepreneurship Global Student Challenge” and
“HK 200 Leadership Project” organized by Hong
Kong Federation of Youth Groups are two of the
key annual sponsorship programs. These programs
aim at encouraging the youth to contribute their
skills to the society and equipping them with the
right attitude, knowledge and leadership skills in
the real business world.

We wish to express our great appreciation to
our management and staff for their dedication,
time and money to all of these charity events and
projects. Lifes have impact to on other lifes.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

RAYMOND CHAN, JP

Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer, a member of the Executive
Committee of the Board and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company, aged 63. Dr. Chan founded the IDT business in 1977. He leads
the management in setting the Group’s mission and objectives, develops and
formulates business strategies. Dr. Chan started out as an electronic engineer
and has over 42 years’ experience in the consumer electronics industry. Before
establishing the IDT business, he worked for multinational semi-conductor
companies in the US and Hong Kong. Dr. Chan has been conferred for a
degree of Doctor in Business Administration, honoris causa by The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003. Dr. Chan is a Court Member
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a member of Board of Governors of
Canadian International School of Hong Kong, a Council Member of Shanghai
Jiao Tong University, the Honorary Advisor of HKICC Lee Shau Kee School of
Creativity, the Honorary President of The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong and Life Patron of The Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries. Dr. Chan is the husband of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley.

CHAN PAU SHIU YENG, SHIRLEY

Executive Director, a member of the Executive Committee, Nomination
and Corporate Governance Committee and Remuneration Committee and
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company, aged 63. Mrs. Chan is
the wife of Dr. Raymond Chan and as a co-founder of the Group, she has
been involved in developing the IDT business since 1977. Mrs. Chan’s main
responsibilities are to advise the business and marketing activities, legal affairs
and administrative functions of the Group. Mrs. Chan holds a MBA degree
from the University of Hull, UK, a Master of Arts degree in Communication
Management from the University of South Australia, and a Master of Arts
degree in English for Professional Purposes from the University of Central
Lancashire, UK.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LO KAI YIU, ANTHONY

Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee,
aged 63. Mr. Lo was appointed in July 1990. Mr. Lo is qualified as a
chartered accountant with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario,
Canada and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in banking, finance and
investments. He worked for a number of well known financial institutions
including serving as a managing director of Indosuez Asia Limited, Suez Asia
Investment Management Ltd., HG Asia Limited, ABN Amro Asia Limited
and PrimeCredit Limited. He has the relevant experience in internal controls
and in preparing and auditing comparable financial statements as well as
experience in reviewing or analysing audited financial statements of public
companies. Mr. Lo is currently the Chairman of Shanghai Century Capital Ltd.
and a non-executive director of Bosera Asset Management (International)
Co., Limited. He is an independent non-executive director and chairman of
the audit committee of Mecox Lane Limited, a listed company on Nasdag.
Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director and members of the
audit, nomination and valuation committees of The Taiwan Fund Inc., which
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. He also serves as an independent
non-executive director, audit committee chairman and member of the
compensation committee of Tristate Holdings Limited; an independent non-
executive director, audit committee chairman and member of the nomination
committee of Playmates Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive
director and member of the audit committee of Convenience Retail Asia
Limited and Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited, all are Hong Kong publicly listed
companies.

KAO YING LUN

Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee and Remuneration
Committee, aged 59. Mr. Kao was appointed in June 1997. He has over 24
years of business and professional experience in investment banking and
corporate finance. Mr. Kao holds an Honours Business Administration Degree
from Richard Ivey School of Business, The University of Western Ontario and is
a Chartered Accountant qualified in Canada.

JACK SCHMUCKLI

Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee and Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee, aged 72. Mr. Schmuckli was appointed in
May 1999. He has over 36 years of professional executive product marketing
experience in the photographic and electronics industries. He had been the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Sony Europe GmbH for 14 years and
had also been an executive member of the board of Sony Corporation, Tokyo.
Mr. Schmuckli now holds several non-executive board memberships, mainly in
Switzerland.
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KENICHI OHMAE

Independent Non-Executive Director, aged 69. Dr. Ohmae was appointed
in August 2001. He is a world renowned management consultant and was
selected as one of the five management gurus in the world by The Economist
in 1994. Dr. Ohmae received his Ph.D. in nuclear engineering from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology and an honorary doctorate from
Notre Dame University. He is an expert in formulating creative strategies and
developing organizational concepts for both the private and public sectors.
He is the founder and President and Chief Executive Officer of Business
Breakthrough, Inc. and before that, had been a partner of McKinsey &
Company, Inc., an international management consulting firm, for 23 years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LEONG MUN HOONG, LEON

President — Value Manufacturing Services business unit (VMS business unit),
aged 51. Mr. Leong joined the Group in June 1999. He has profit and loss
responsibility for the VMS business unit which offers best-in-class product
development and manufacturing services for Sports, Fitness and Healthcare,
Telecommunications, Energy Monitoring and Management, Environmental
Monitoring and other OEM/ODM business. His role encompasses the
entire business strategic planning and execution to achieve growth targets
in turnover and profitability that will include planning and identification
of new growth opportunities and execution of strategies and actions in
business development, new product development and innovation, research
and development and new technologies, new product planning, project
management and quality manufacturing. Mr. Leong holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Industrial Engineering obtained from the University of
Tennessee, USA and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Warwick, UK. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Managing
Director of Strombecker (HK) Ltd.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

The directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their annual report
and audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries
are engaged in the investment holdings, design, development, manufacture,
sales and marketing of various consumer electronic products. Details of the
principal activities of the Group's subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2012 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 51 and further
analysis is given in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend for the year ended March 31, 2012 was paid (2011: Nil)
to the shareholders of the Company.

The directors of the Company have resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend to the shareholders of the Company (2011: Nil).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 54.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$16.6 million (2011: HK$28.1 million) on the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment for the purpose of business expansion.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
HK$663,000 (2011: HK$415,400).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers in the year accounted for approximately 15% of the Group’s
purchases and the purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 6% of the Group's purchases.

The aggregate percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers was approximately 20% of the Group’s turnover and the
percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 4% of the Group's turnover for the year.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders, who to the knowledge
of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital, had any
interest in any of the five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive:
Raymond Chan, JP, Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley

Independent Non-Executive:
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Kao Ying Lun

Jack Schmuckli

Kenichi Ohmae

In accordance with Bye-law 97 of the Company's Bye-Laws, Dr. Raymond
Chan and Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The retiring directors,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).The Company considered all the
independent non-executive directors as independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
November 10, 2010 which can be terminated by either party giving a three
month’s written notice to the other party. Under such service contract,
each of the independent non-executive directors is subject to retirement
by rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws, and is entitled to a fee of HK$200,000 per
annum subject to such adjustments as the Board of the Company considers
appropriate and the approval of the shareholders at annual general meeting
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company offering for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at March 31, 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under the provisions of the SFO) or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Model Code") were as follows:

26 IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A F

EERBEEL

BB IENTEEHCBARBRLRISAL - THH
—ZE-ZF+—ATHBHASH-F  MZBRESHA
HEF—FAGHTFR— A -@AAZEEBMT UKL -
RIBZREEL  SBUIERTESBERALAER
WANBRBFAEG FRESE  REREKREFEEE
200,0007C 2% - WS HARAEEERAEE
BPLEE  HARTRAQFREEFAS LERE
HEIEE -

B EXPRIREESN - BN EERRBEFAE EEREE
ZARPRERBEARDR L EAN—FAEERE
OEEREBRIN BN RAEEL I Z RBEL -

ESREESHZER

ARRAREAATE R BEFRIRANEE QTR
BBV ERAARREENEPERREEREFEARE
HZBEEH -

EEZESEDR

RIB-——F=A=+—0  ARAEFRITHREHN
ARRBHEAREEE (EEREH RS G ([ F
FREEGDIDEXVER) Z D - BRIk R EEET
BEERBES NP EEOIEXVEISE7 R8N HAME A
RE R R (BREREZEE S LPERPIE G E
ERBERE 2 RRTORR ) RARRREBEESF LR
GPIE32EATHREF 2 ERMACHHBIE LT AR
ERETEARRGOFREST (HRETRA D AMEARR
BN R Pz B RORR AT

Annual Report 2012 F %R



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued) BEEoBSFERE@®
No. of shares held l':'::;?; ::;
PG E % of  shares held
Personal Family Corporate the issued under equity
Name interests interests interests Total capital derivatives
DYES
fTEIA
HERT BEZER
o BARER RikER DEIER Ay REFIHL BB EE
(note 3)
(Pi%E3)
Raymond Chan G e3'g 105,505,102 314,482,303 1,010,730,270 1,430,717,675 57.18% 8,120,000
(note 1) (note 2)
(M) (F#E2)
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, BREE & 109,291,431 1,116,235,372 205,190,872 1,430,717,675 57.18% 7,080,000
Shirley (note 1) (note 2)
(P&E1) (Ffi5E2)
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony EREHR 1,711,779 - - 1,711,779 0.07% 6,040,000
Kao Ying Lun SR E - - - - - 6,040,000
Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli 1,667,200 - - 1,667,200 0.07% 6,040,000
Kenichi Ohmae KA — - - - - - 6,040,000
All interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares/underlying X Fri B2 2019 AR A TR FEREAD 2 178 -
shares of the Company.
Notes: FfsE -

(1) Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley is the wife of Dr. Raymond Chan. The personal
and corporate interests of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley are disclosed as the
family interests of Dr. Raymond Chan. The personal and corporate interests of Dr.
Raymond Chan are disclosed as the family interests of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng,
Shirley.

(2) 1,010,730,270 ordinary shares are held by Integrated Display Technology Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is wholly owned
by Dr. Raymond Chan. 205,190,872 ordinary shares are held by Raymax Time
Company Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is
wholly owned by Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley.

(3) These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share options
granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the sub-section
entitled “Share Option Scheme"” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives of the
Company or any of their associates had, as at March 31, 2012, any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under the provisions
of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company on August 28,
2002 (“2002 IDT International Option Scheme”) are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

Particulars of the outstanding options under the 2002 IDT International
Option Scheme held by the directors during the financial year ended March
31, 2012 were as follows:

B REST 2
ARARARZEZE-_FNA+N\BEAZ ERESE
(2 -_FEHBEBRBRETE ) 25 HR %R
*MIFESE 2718 -

HE-_T——HF-A=-+—HUIUHRFE EFHRE_
T FHHERERE RS E BB

Number of share options
BREHA
Lapsed/
Exercise Granted Exercised cancelled
price  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Directors Date of grant Exercisable period pershare  at4.1.2011 the year the year theyear  at3.31.2012
RZB-—-F R-ZB-Zf
A-B R =B=1-AH
i REAH ESEE  BRITEE HMATE  FRERE  ERESE  AREH CE X
(M/D/Y) (M/D/Y) (HK$)
(R/B/F) (R/B/E) B
Raymond Chan BRIEX 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 3,120,000 - - - 3,120,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013-12.11.2021 0.104 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014-12.11.2021 0.104 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shifley [R5 % 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 2,080,000 - - - 2,080,000
12.12.201 12.12.2013-12.11.2021 0.104 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014-12.11.2021 0.104 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony ERE 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 - - - 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 -11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013-11.30.2020 0222 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013-12.11.2021 0.104 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
12.12.201 12.12.2014-12.11.2021 0.104 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Kao Ying Lun BES: 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 - - - 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0222 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 -11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12.12.201 12.12.2013-12.11.2021 0.104 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014-12.11.2021 0.104 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli ~ 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 - - - 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 -11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013-11.30.2020 0222 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013-12.11.2021 0.104 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014-12.11.2021 0.104 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Kenichi Ohmae RATHH— 11.30.2005 12.01.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 1,040,000 - - - 1,040,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2012 - 11.30.2020 0222 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12.01.2010 12.01.2013 -11.30.2020 0.222 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013-12.11.2021 0.104 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2014-12.11.2021 0.104 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Details of share options granted to or exercised by the directors of the
Company during the year and their outstanding balances at March 31, 2012
are set out in the sub-section entitled “Share Option Scheme” above and also
in note 27 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company or their respective spouse or children under the age of 18 to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at March 31, 2012, the following persons (other than the directors or the
chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company were as follows:

FERR

REZZ-—ZHF=A=+—0 RARREFHITHAEE
Sh - FHIALTRARBZ Pl RABEBR DT - HEAD
AREES RBERDIEIBCHAETHFELCMAL
BRAMGARRZERIORBMT

No. of % of the issued

Name shares held share capital
HEBRITRE

=L FERO8E Aotk
Integrated Display Technology Limited (note 1) (Fffz£ 1) 1,010,730,270 40.39%
Raymax Time Company Limited (note 2) (fiz£2) 205,190,872 8.20%

All interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares of the
Company.

Notes:

(1) Integrated Display Technology Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, is wholly owned by Dr. Raymond Chan. Such corporate interests
are also disclosed in the sub-section entitled “Directors’ Interests in Securities”
above.

(2) Raymax Time Company Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is wholly owned by Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. Such corporate
interests are also disclosed in the sub-section entitled “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at March 31, 2012 which were required to be disclosed to the
Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save for the share options set out in the sub-section entitled “Share Option
Scheme” above and also in note 27 to the financial statements, the Company
had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
at March 31, 2012.

Other than the issue and exercise of share options pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company as explained above, there was no issue or
exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights of the
Company during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement schemes are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group’s remuneration policy are set out in the section of
"Operations Review"” from page 10 to page 17 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by officers of the Group (the “Code"”) on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all directors, they have confirmed that they fully complied
with the required standards set out in both the Model Code and the Code
throughout the year ended March 31, 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance.
The Group's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from page 31 to page 48 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float throughout the year
ended March 31, 2012 as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Raymond Chan, Jp
Chairman & Group
Chief Executive Officer

Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley
Executive Director

June 28, 2012
Hong Kong
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Corporate Governance Report

i

"/\-lv\\ =+
BERMmEE

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value
and accountability. Throughout the year ended March 31, 2012, the Group
has applied the principles and complied with most of the code provisions
and recommended best practices prescribed in the Code on Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). This report describes its corporate
governance practices, explains the applications of the principles of the CG
Code and deviation during the year under review.

1

1.1
1.1.1

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company and its businesses by directing and supervising
the Company'’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.
The principle functions of the Board are to:

° establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

° determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance
objectives of the Group;

. monitor management performance;

° approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding
proposals, key funding and investment proposals;

° oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal
controls, risk management, financial reporting and compliance;

° approve the nominations of directors and appointment of key
personnel; and

° assume responsibility for corporate governance.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to executive
directors and senior management, while reserving certain key matters
for its approval. Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive directors who have attended at
Board meetings and circulation of minutes of Board meetings to the
management.
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1.1.4

32

The Board has adopted a set of guidelines on matters that requires
its approval to achieve a clear division of the responsibilities of the
Board and the management. Matters requiring the Board's approval
include, among others, all matters of strategic importance, corporate
governance practices, legal and regulatory compliance, internal control
and risk management, corporate strategy, operating and capital
budgets, statutory financial reports, changes in Board members, major
transactions and investment commitments and remuneration policy of
directors and senior management, financial authorization and approval
limits for operating and capital expenditure, the procurement of goods
and services, and the acquisition and disposal of investments. Apart
from matters that specifically require the Board's approval — such as the
issue of shares, dividend distributions and other returns to shareholders
— the Board approves transactions exceeding certain threshold limit,
while delegating authority for transactions below those limits to
Executive Committee so as to facilitate operational efficiency.

The Board meets regularly. In addition to at least 4 scheduled meetings
each year, it meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances.
Meetings via telephone or video-conference are permitted under the
Bye-Laws of the Company. A record of the number of Board meetings
and Board Committees meetings held during the financial year ended
March 31, 2012 is set out in the table on page 42.

To maximize the effectiveness of the Board and to encourage active
participation and contribution from Board members, the Board has
established executive committee, audit committee, nomination and
corporate governance committee and remuneration committee with
specific and clear written terms of reference to assist in the execution
of their duties. The terms of reference of each of the Board committees
are reviewed from time to time, as are the committees’ structure and
memberships. A further description of each of these committees is set
out below. Board committees report to the Board on their works and
findings. They adopt as far as practicable, the principles, procedures
and arrangements of the Board in relation to scheduling and conduct of
meetings, notice of meetings and inclusion of agenda items, recording
and availability of minutes.

The company secretary attends all Board/Board committees meetings.
All Directors have access to the company secretary who is responsible
for ensuring that Board/Board committees procedures are observed and
advising the Board/Board committees on compliance matters.

To address the competing time commitments of directors who sit on
multiple boards, Board/Board committees meetings dates are scheduled
well in advance at the beginning of every calendar year. Notices
of regular Board/Board committees meetings are given at least 14
days before the meeting date. For all other Board/Board committees
meetings, reasonable notices are given.
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1.1.9 All directors were given the opportunities to include matters to be

discussed in the agenda of Board/Board committees meetings. The
company secretary is delegated with the responsibility to prepare
these agendas and, where appropriate, take into account any matters
proposed by each director/committee member for inclusion in the
agenda.

1.10 Other than in exceptional circumstances, an agenda accompanied by

detailed board papers (prepared in such form and quality as will enable
the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it,
including but not limited to, background or explanatory information
relating to matters to be brought before the Board and internal financial
information such as quarterly management accounts, forecasts and
budgets with material variance between projections and actual results
explained) are circulated to all directors in a timely manner and at least
three days before the date of scheduled meeting.

1.1.11 Minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are recorded in detail

the matters considered by the participants of such meetings and
decisions reached, including concerns raised by directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes are circulated to relevant directors/
committee members within a reasonable time after the meetings are
held for comments and before being approved by the Board/Board
committees and taken as the true records of the proceedings of such
meetings at the immediate following meetings. They are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any director.

1.1.12 Directors are provided in a timely manner with complete, adequate

explanation and information about the Company and its subsidiaries,
its activities, performances and its projects particularly including any
significant variances from a planned course of actions to enable them to
make an informed decision or assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.
In the case when the directors have queries, they are provided with
the names and contact details of the Group’s senior management for
separate and independent access to them and they are able to obtain
more information than is volunteered by the management. Senior
management are from time to time brought into formal and informal
contact with the Board at Board meetings and other events.

1.1.13The Board and Board committees are provided with sufficient resources

to properly discharge their duties including access to independent
professional advisers under agreed procedures, upon reasonable
request, at the expense of the Company.

1.1.141f a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a

matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than a written resolution of the Board. The Board will take into
account the exceptions to the general voting prohibition, as set out in
the Listing Rules when considering whether a director shall not vote on
any board resolution approving any matters in which he has material
interest or shall he be counted in the quorum present at the meeting.
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1.1.15The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

1.2
1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

34

insurance cover to indemnify directors of the Group against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by the directors in the
execution and discharge of his/her duties or in relation thereto.

Board Composition

The Board composition is reviewed, considered and discussed by the
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee on an annual
basis and it will make recommendations to the Board after the review.
The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee has devised
guidelines for ideal board size, optimum number of executive and non-
executive directors and board membership criteria and those guidelines
shall be reviewed and revised periodically to meet business needs of the
Group.

At March 31, 2012, the Board comprised six directors of whom two are
executive directors and four are independent non-executive directors.
The size of the Board is conducive to effective discussion and decision-
making and has an appropriate balance of independent directors to
exercise independent judgement.

The attributes, skills and expertise among the existing directors are
considered appropriate to effectively lead and control the Group, taking
into account the scope and nature of its operations. The directors
have a mix of core competencies in areas such as accounting and
finance, business and management, industry knowledge and marketing
strategies. The experience and qualifications of directors and senior
management are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management”
section from page 21 to page 23 of this annual report.

Independent non-executive directors have the same duties of care
and skill and fiduciary duties as executive directors. They are expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of the directors of the Company. The functions of independent
non-executive directors include, but not limited to:

° participating in Board meetings to bring in independent judgment
to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standard of
conducts;

° taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on board committees, if invited; and

° scrutinizing the Group's performance in achieving agreed

corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.
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1.25

1.2.6

1.3
1.3.1

1.3.2

1.3.3

1.3.4

1.35

In assessing the independence of the directors, the Board has examined
the different relationships identified under the Listing Rules that might
impair the directors’ independence and objectivity. The Board considers
that all of the independent non-executive directors are independent and
is satisfied of the directors’ ability to act with independent judgement.
Each of the independent non-executive directors has provided to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence required by the
Listing Rules.

Details of the membership of the Board (including the independent
non-executive directors) and roles and functions of directors are
posted on the Stock Exhange and the Company’s websites and such
information is updated whenever there are changes.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Appointment of new directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee. It reviews the
profiles of the candidates and makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, re-nomination and retirement of directors.

At each annual general meeting (“AGM"), one-third of the directors are
required to retire from office. The directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election. New directors appointed by the Board after the last AGM shall
retire and are eligible for re-election at the AGM immediately following
their appointments. The new directors shall not be taken into account
in determining the number of directors who are to retire by rotation at
that AGM. Dr. Raymond Chan and Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM. All retiring directors are
eligible for re-election.

Independent non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed term of
three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by
shareholders at AGM in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The names and biographical details of the directors who will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set out in the
circular to shareholders to assist shareholders in making an informed
decision on their elections.

Newly appointed directors of the Company will receive induction and
reference materials to enable him/her to familiarize with the Group's
history, mission, business operations and board and company policies.
Each director is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that
he/she has a proper understanding of the operations and business of
the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under
statute and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Company.
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1.4
1.4.1

1.4.2

36

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Raymond Chan assumes the role of both the chairman and the
group chief executive officer of the Company. While serving as the
chairman responsible for the proceedings of the Board, Dr. Chan also
bears executive responsibility for the Group’s businesses. He ensures
that:

o the Board functions effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are properly briefed and discussed by the Board in a timely
manner;

° good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established and all directors are encouraged to make full and
active participation to the affairs of the Group; and

° the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. He also
attends to the formulation and successful implementation of
group policies, the development of strategic operating plans
to reflect the longer-term objectives and priorities established
by the Board and is directly accountable to the Board for the
operating performance of the Group. With the assistance of the
management, Dr. Chan ensures that the funding requirements
of the businesses are met and closely monitors the operating
and financial results against plans and budgets, taking remedial
actions when necessary and advising the Board of significant
development and issues. He is also responsible for building and
maintaining an effective executive team to support him in his
role.

The role of chairman and group chief executive officer of the Group
rests on the same individual during the aforesaid period which deviates
from the code provision in the CG Code of not having a clear division
of responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and authority. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability and
independent decision-making for the following reasons:

o the non-executive directors form the majority of the Board of
which 4 out of a total of 6 are independent; and

° through discussions with the chairman and among themselves
during board meetings and beyond on pertinent issues affecting
the affairs and businesses of the Group, these independent
directors challenge the proposals and directions of the
management, thus enabling the Board to benefit from the
objective judgment.
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1.4.3 Dr. Chan is one of the founders and a substantial shareholder of the

Group and has considerable industry experience. The Board is of the
view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have an executive
chairman so that the Board, and in particular the non-executive
directors, can have the benefit of a chairman who is knowledgeable
about the business of the Group and is most capable to guide
discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on pertinent issues
and developments to facilitate open dialogue between the Board and
the management. He is also motivated to contribute to the growth and
profitability of the Group.

1.4.4 Other than regular board meetings, the chairman from time to time

meets with individual independent non-executive directors without
the executive directors or management present to discuss matters of
particular interest.

1.5 Board Committee
1.5.1 Executive Committee (“EC")

1.5.1

1.5

.1 The EC of the Board comprises of all executive directors. The quorum

necessary for transaction of business is two.

.12The EC meets as and when required to oversee the day-to-day

management of the Group and has all the general powers of the Board
except those matters specifically reserved for the Board.

1.5.1.3 The principal duties of EC include:

o to manage the business and investments by overseeing the
Group's operations, projects, assets and liabilities, budgets,
compliance obligations and financial performance in accordance
with the policies and directives of the Board;

° to make recommendations to the Board as to the Group’s overall
policies, strategies and financial objectives in the development of
its business and to ensure their implementation and execution;
and

. to provide leadership to staff and management and to nominate
key personnel and ensure appropriate levels of authority are
delegated to them.

1.5.1.4 Seven meetings of the EC were held during the year ended March 31,

2012. All resolutions resolved by the EC are reported to the Board at
quarterly Board meetings.
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1.5.2 Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee (“NCGC")
1.5.2.1 The NCGC comprises of a majority of independent non-executive

directors, which meets at least once a year. It is chaired by Mr. Jack
Schmuckli and comprises two other members, namely, Mr. Kao Ying
Lun and Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. All NCGC members, with
the exception of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley, are independent
non-executive directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction of
business is two.

1.5.2.2 The terms of reference of the NCGC are posted on the Stock Exchange

and the Company’s websites. With effect from March 28, 2012, the
principal functions of the NCGC include:

o to make recommendations to the Board on all new appointments
or re-appointments of directors, the establishment of a succession
plan for directors, in particular the chairman and chief executive
officer and the composition of the Board;

o to identify and nominate qualified individuals, subject to the
approval of the Board, to be additional directors or to fill vacancy

in the Board as and when they arise;

. to review on an annual basis the Board structure, size and
composition and the independent element of the Board;

o to develop the criteria for selection of directors;

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

1.5.2.3 The chairman of the NCGC will report to the Board on its proceedings

38

and recommendations after each meeting.
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1.5.2.4 The main work performed by NCGC during the year ended March 31,

2012 include the review of structure and composition of the Board;
the assessment of independence of existing independent non-executive
directors; the recommendation of re-election of retiring directors and
adoption of the revised terms of reference of NCGC to the Board.

1.5.3 Remuneration Committee (“RC")
1.5.3.1 The RC comprises a majority of independent non-executive directors,

which meets at least once a year. It is chaired by Mr. Jack Schmuckli
and comprises two other members, namely, Mr. Kao Ying Lun and
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley. All RC members, with the exception
of Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley, are independent non-executive
directors. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.

1.5.3.2 The terms of reference of the RC are posted on the Stock Exchange

and the Company’s websites. The RC consults the chairman and chief
executive officer about its proposals relating to the remuneration of
other executive directors and have access to professional advice if
considered necessary. With effect from March 28, 2012, the principal
functions of the RC include:

. to recommend to the Board on the Company’s policies and
structure for the remuneration of the directors and senior
management of the Group;

o to recommend to the Board the remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management; and

o to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives.

1.5.3.3 The chairman of the RC will report to the Board on its proceedings and

recommendations, where appropriate, for the Board’s consideration
and/or approval.

1.5.3.4 The main work performed by RC during the year ended March 31,

2012 include the review and the approval of the new incentive schemes
of executives; the employees’ annual salary increment commencing
from April 1, 2011; directors’ fees paid during the year ended March
31, 2011; grant of share options to the management of the Group and
the recommendation of the adoption of the revised terms of reference
of RC to the Board.

1.5.3.5 A general description of the Group’s emolument policy and long-term

incentive schemes as well as the basis of determining the emolument
payable to the directors are disclosed in the section of “Operations
Review"” from page 10 to page 17 of this annual report.
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1.5.4 Audit Committee ("AC")

1.5.4.1 The AC consists of three members, namely, Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony
(chairman), Mr. Kao Ying Lun and Mr. Jack Schmuckli, all of whom are
independent non-executive directors. The Board is of the opinion that
the majority of the members of the AC possess accounting and financial
management expertise or experience to discharge their duties.

1.5.4.2 The operations of the AC are regulated by its terms of reference which
have been approved by the Board and is subject to review by the Board
from time to time. The terms of reference of the AC are posted on
the Stock Company’s websites. With effect from March 28, 2012, the
major duties of AC include:

. to consider and recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor;

o to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor, any questions of resignation or dismissal of that
auditor;

o to review and monitor external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

o to discuss with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and to make
recommendation of any measures for improvements to be taken;

o to monitor integrity of financial statements, annual and interim
reports and to review significant financial reporting judgement
contained in them. In this regard, in reviewing the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements and the annual and
the interim reports before submission to the Board, focusing
particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;
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(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting; and

(vii) any matters that have been raised by the Company'’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function or auditors;

to review the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss with the management the system of internal control
and ensure that the management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget;

to consider major investigations of findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

to review the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company and to review and
monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management'’s response and to ensure that the Board will
provide a timely response to the issues raised;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to review the arrangements the Group’s employees can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action; and

to report to the Board on matters set out above and to consider
other topics, as defined by the Board.
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1.5.43The AC has explicit authority to investigate into any matter under the

scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent professional
advice. It is given full access to and cooperation of the management.
It has been provided with reasonable resources to discharge its duties
properly. In the course of reviewing the Group's financial information,
the AC members liaise closely with the Board and the Group Chief
Financial Officer to gather relevant information. At least once a year,
the AC meets the external auditors without the management present.

15.44The major work performed by the AC include the review and

1.6

consideration of the announcements relating to the Group’s interim
and annual results; interim and annual reports; significant accounting
and audit issues arising from annual audit of the Group’s financial
statements; periodic reports from internal audit department; internal
audit plan as well as external auditor’s audit and non-audit fees.

1543
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1.54.5Full minutes of the AC are kept by the company secretary of the 1545 ERZEerFZencaA AR ARNER
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to all members of the AC for their comment and records respectively, in BERE-BRAERBEANEET2REREZES
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The following table summarizes the attendance of individual directors 1.6 fEARIE=ENZE€€ENEUBMHEENLFES
and committee members in the financial year under review: MR
No. of meeting attended/no. of meeting held
HESEAR SRETRY
Nomination
and
Corporate
Executive Audit  Governance Remuneration 2011
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee AGM
RER “E--f
rEER (e
Ezg #7zE8E€ ENRZEE £Z88 ¥HzEg BExE
(note 1) (note 2) (note 3) (note 4)
(HizE1) (Fizz2) (F#7£3) (Ftzx4)
Executive Director HiTES
Raymond Chan BRI 4/4 777 - - - 11
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley RiEL 4/4 77 - 11 1/1 11
Independent UHHTES
Non-Executive Director
Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony BRR 44 - 33 - - n
Kao Ying Lun BRE 44 - 33 n N N
Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli 4/4 - 33 n " -
Kenichi Ohmae RATH— 1/4 - - - - 11
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Note: (1)

@)

(©)

)

Apart from the duly convened meeting of the directors, resolutions
in writing were circulated and passed by all directors on one
occasion during the financial year ended March 31, 2012.

Apart from the duly convened meeting of the Executive
Committee, resolutions in writing were circulated and passed by
all committee members on one occasion during the financial year
ended March 31, 2012.

Apart from the duly convened meeting of the Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee, resolutions in writing were
circulated and passed by all committee members on one occasions
during the financial year ended March 31, 2012.

Apart from the duly convened meeting of the Remuneration
Committee, resolutions in writing were circulated and passed by all
committee members on three occasions during the financial year
ended March 31, 2012.

1.7 Securities Transactions by Officers

1.7.1 The Company has adopted a Code for Securities Transactions by
Officers of the Group (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

1.7.2 Having made specific enquiry of all directors, they have confirmed that
they fully complied with the required standards set out in both the
Model Code and the Code throughout the year ended March 31, 2012.

1.7.3 Officers as defined in the Code who is deemed to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or
its shares are prohibited from dealing in shares of the Company during
the black-out period.
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2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

2.2
2.2.1

2.2.2
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2012, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

Management recognizes the importance of providing the Board with
appropriate and relevant information on an accurate and timely basis.
Quarterly business review and financial reports comparing the Group'’s
actual performance with budget and highlighting major relevant issues
are provided to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment
on the Group’s performance, position and prospects.

The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s position and prospects to extend to the
Group's financial reporting including annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company publishes its interim and annual financial results in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls
and is committed to managing business risks and maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets.

The Group's internal control system encompasses its policies, processes,
tasks, and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

o facilitate its effective and efficient operation by allowing it
to respond appropriately to significant business, operational,
financial, compliance and other risks with a view of achieving
business objectives. This includes the safeguarding of assets
from inappropriate use or from loss and fraud and ensuring that
liabilities are identified and managed;

o help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal or external
reporting; and

o help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations,

and also with internal policies with respect to the conduct of
business.
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2.2.3

2.2.4

2.2.5

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance of no material mis-statement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective
internal controls are as follows:

o A distinct organization structure exists with defined lines of
authority and responsibilities. Division/Departments Heads
are involved in preparing the strategic plan which laid down
the corporate strategies to be pursued in the coming year for
achieving the annual operating plan and the annual operational
and financial targets. Both the strategic plan and the annual
operating plan laid down the foundation for the preparation of
the annual budget by which resources are allocated in accordance
with identified and prioritized business opportunities. The
strategic plan has been approved by the Executive Committee
subject to annual review. The annual operating plan and annual
budget are approved by the Board yearly;

° A comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in
place providing financial and operational performance indicators
to the management, and the relevant financial information for
reporting and disclosure purpose. Variances against budgets are
analyzed, and explained, and appropriate actions are taken, if
necessary, to rectify deficiencies noted; and

° System and procedures are in place to identify, measure, manage
and control risks including legal, credit, market, operational,
environmental, behavioral and system risks that may have an
impact on the Group.

The Group's Internal Audit Department (“IA") performs regular audit
reviews of the risks and key controls of the Group. IA plays an important
role in monitoring the Group’s internal governance, evaluating the
quality of the internal control system and informing the Board on a
quarterly basis whether a sound internal control system is maintained
and operated by the management in compliance with agreed processes
and standards. To preserve the independence of the internal audit
function, the Head of IA reports directly to the AC on audit matters and
to the chief executive officer on administrative matters.
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2.2.7

2.2.8

2.3
2.3.1

3.1

3.2

3.3
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Using a risk management-based approach audit, IA plans its internal
audit projects annually in consultation with, but independent of,
management. The audit methodology and process adopted by IA
include understanding and analyzing the business, determining risk
areas within key processes, analyzing and evaluating the process control
effectiveness and communicating results and follow up. Independent
reviews of different financial, business and functional operations and
activities will be conducted with audit resources being focused on
higher risk areas. Ad-hoc reviews will also be conducted on areas of
concern identified by the AC and the management.

Division/Department Heads will be notified of the control deficiencies
noted for rectification, and IA will follow up with the implementation
of audit recommendations. Significant internal control weaknesses are
brought to the attention of the AC and if necessary to the Board, and
to the senior management for remedial actions.

The Board, through the AC, has conducted reviews of the effectiveness
of the Group’s system of internal control covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions. The Board, through the review of the AC, is
satisfied that the Group has fully complied with the code provisions on
internal controls during the year under review as set forth in the CG
Code.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year, the fees paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
Company'’s external auditor, for audit services of the Company and its
subsidiaries amounted to HK$4.6 million (2011: HK$4.7 million) and
for non-audit related services, representing mainly taxation services,
amounted to HK$0.1 million (2011: HK$0.9 million).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Company strives to convey to shareholders pertinent information
in a clear, detailed, timely manner and on a regular basis and to take
into consideration their views and inputs, and address shareholders’
concerns. Their views are communicated to the Board as a whole.

The Company communicates with its shareholders through the
publication of annual and interim reports, results announcement and
press release. All shareholders’ communications are also available on
the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkex.com or the Company’s
website at www.idthk.com (“Company’s Website”).

The AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of
AC, NCGC and/or RC, or in their absence, members of the Board
committees are available to answer shareholders’ questions.
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3.4

3.5

3.6

3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

3.6.4

3.7

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. Votes cast on each resolution at the general meetings are
properly counted and recorded.

At each AGM or SGM, the shareholders will be informed the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and answers will be provided if there
are any questions from the shareholders. The poll results are posted on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s Website.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM")

The directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in its bye-laws
shall, on the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of
the paid-up capital of the company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith
proceed duly to convene a SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at
the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the company secretary will ask the Board of directors to include the
resolution in the agenda for the SGM.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

Shareholders who want to put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM
should submit a written notice of those proposals with their detail
contact information to the company secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be verified
with the Company’s share registrars and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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3.8

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.2

48

Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders’ enquiries must be in writing setting out their contact
information and deposited at the company secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognized that effective communication to investors is
the key to establish investor confidence and attracting new investors.
Measures taken by the Group include:

Annual & Interim Reporting

Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all shareholders
within the prescribed period stipulated by the Stock Exchange. All
results announcement and reports are posted on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s Website.

Media and Analysts Briefings

Briefings for media and analysts are organized by the Company
from time to time. During the briefings, the Group’s management
provides detailed explanations on the Group’s business trends and
drivers in respect of the relevant periods and ensures that the financial
performance and accounts of the Group are well understood. There
is also ample opportunity for the analysts and media to ask questions
and interact with the executive directors and senior management. All
presentation materials on the Group’s financial results, announcements
and news release are available on the Company’s Website.

The Group regularly releases corporate information such as awards
received, product launches and the latest news of the Group's
developments on the Company’s Website. The public are welcome to
give their comments and make their enquiries through the Company’s
website and the management will provide their prompt response.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEERES

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IDT International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 51 to 124, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2012 and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

June 28, 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e ZHEWER

For the year ended March 31,2012 #Z2=F——F=A=+—HIFE

2012 2011
NOTES HKS$'M HK$'M
L BERET BEEET
Turnover E 3 5 1,597.1 1,623.6
Cost of goods sold SHE R (1,112.6) (1,090.9)
Gross profit EH 484.5 532.7
Other income Hiplgzs 21.5 12.5
Other gains and losses H i pris R EE 6 (6.4) (39.2)
Research and development costs HELFEER (85.0) (86.6)
Distribution and selling expenses DR EERS (247.1) (266.1)
General administrative expenses —RITHAX (186.4) (191.8)
Interest on bank and other borrowings ~ ZBRAF AL EUEE 2 81T
wholly repayable within five years BEREMEEZFE ()] (7.1)
Loss before taxation BB AT 1B 7 (P1)) (45.6)
Taxation FiIE 10 (5.1) (1.6)
Loss for the year KREEEE (30.4) (47.2)
Other comprehensive (expense) income:  Hth & mE (B3 ) Wz -
Exchange differences arising on HMEBINETEE R
translation of foreign operations FEH =58 12.0
Total comprehensive expenses REELAEMS B
for the year (35.2)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: AT~ A LEMEARGFEE (F5i8)
A
Owners of the Company ZiN/NCIE VDN (49.6)
Non-controlling interests eI I = 2.4
(47.2)
Total comprehensive (expenses) IWTAZEGEZE (FAX)
income attributable to: W g
Owners of the Company VNN Z DN (37.5)
Non-controlling interests FEEIRE 2.3
(35.2)
Loss per share BRkEE
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 11 (PPN et (1.98) HK cents A #IL
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R

AtMarch31 2012}%72* F=A=+—H

NOTES
B RE
Non-current assets JEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - AR RH 12
Intangible assets mIZARE 13
Goodwill EES 14
Available-for-sale investments AIHEERE 15
Deferred tax assets FEFTEE E 16
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, EEEYE - HMERRE
plant and equipment ZEl®
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 17
Trade and other receivables JE UK B 5% B EL A JE L R TR 18
Taxation recoverable AU B R IR
Held for trading investment RIEEERIRE 19
Forward contract assets BHENEE 24
Short-term bank deposits RESRITER 20
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR IS 20
Current liabilities A E
Trade and other payables and JE A PR 3R R L b A+
accruals HENFEIREA 21
Bills payables EANESE 22
Obligations under finance leases due BAR—FNERZIH
within one year MHES 23
Forward contract liabilities REANEE 24
Taxation payable FESTE
Bank loans IRITER 25
Bank overdrafts RITEX 25
Net current assets MEEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTESEE
Non-current liabilities B EIE=RE
Obligations under finance leases due BR—FRERZ T
after one year MHES 23
Bank loans IRITER 25
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 16
Net assets BEFE

52 IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A F

3.31.2012 3.31.2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BY¥EET BEBET

132.9
46.8
341

0.4
38.9

253.1

295.7
264.6
0.4
57

74.2
340.9

981.5

273.0
0.1

0.1
12.4
2.5
305.9
5.8

599.8
381.7

634.8

0.1

131
13.2

621.6

Annual Report 2012 F 3



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e ISR R

At March 31,2012 A= ZE——#=H=+—H

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
B & BERET BEEET

Capital and reserves A& AN K 5
Share capital &N 26 250.2
Reserves G 371.3
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KA Rl1#EA AJEG RS 621.5
Non-controlling interests SRR 0.1
Total equity = BRE 621.6

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 124 were approved H51BEF 124 B2 EAHBHREER T ——F <A
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on June 28, 2012 and are =+ \RAEEESHERFELRT  Th NIIATHRE

signed on its behalf by: HE
Raymond Chan, JP Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley
BRIZS - KFM* PREAE %
Chairman & Group Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
FEFEETHARER HiTEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

an *ﬂ

I—\/z_

Z S\ moin Ej] %

For the year ended March 31,2012 HZ—=

T —F=-f=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRER A
Properties Share Non-
Share Share Other revaluation ~ options Translation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earmnings Total interests equity
nE BhRE g% 2k
Bx  RBEE EBHRE  EHRE fife  RERE REEN a8 BE  RESE
HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M
AEEEL AYEET ABEET AWEERN AYEEn R%EEN AWEER AMEEn ALEER AERER
At April 1, 2010 R-2-TEMA-A 2502 1516 - 219 17 (69.0) 263.1 6255 187.0 8125
Bichange differences arising from @5 EREE 7B 28
translation of foreign operations - - - - - 121 - 121 (0.1) 120
(Loss) profitfor the year TER (B8 &M - - - - - - (496) (49.6) 24 (47.2)
Total comprehensive income TEERENE (RY) 68
(expenses) for the year - - - - - 121 (49.6) (37.5) 23 (352)
Recognition of equity-setled ANERR U R
share based payments BREV[E - - - - 10 - - 10 - 10
Lapse of share options BIRELm - - - - (02 - 02 - - -
Acquisition of additional interest  $E&—EHBRF 2R
in a subsidiary - - 325 - - - - 325 (189.2) (156.7)
At March 31,2011 R-Z——F=F=1-H 2502 1516 325 219 25 (56.9) 2137 6215 0.1 6216
Eichange differences arising from ~ 2B EBELZER 28
translation of foreign operations - - - - - (16.1) - (16.1) - (16.1)
Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - - - (304) (304) - (304)
Total comprehensive expenses  AEE2 AR A
for the year - - - - - (16.1) (304) (46.5) - (46.5)
Recognition of equity-settled share  BEZAUAEER S [ MR 1A
based payments BREEZRH - - - - 21 - - 2 - 21
Lapse of share options BIRERW - - - - (04) - 04 - - -
At March 31,2012 —“E=f=1-H 2502 1516 325 219 42 (73.0) 183.7 5771 0.1 577.2
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERTRER

For the year ended March 31,2012 #Z2=F——F=A=+—HIFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expenses
Share-based payment expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and

REFHELZHERE
BRiRT 2 B 1R
HE
A EWA
B
PABn REEZ RN R
ER TS

equipment ZIE
Amortisation of intangible assets B BE B
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - MR RRE
and equipment 2 (Wez) &8
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEFEE 2 W&
Impairment losses on trade receivables FENSBR R 2 R E 518
Write down of inventories WoREE
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on E R eIfAAERIRIEAE R 2
inter-company balances [EREE L
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESEHR KL
working capital REME
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA (Em)

Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Decrease) increase in trade and other

TP L2 R R A R W R TR
& A AR R B B A FE AN R S

payables and accruals TR E A R4 B
Decrease in held for trading investment BEEERERD
(Decrease) increase in forward contracts RHAA A O #n
Decrease in bills payables ERRER D
Cash from operations KeEEEERE
Tax refunded REBRIK
Taxation paid EBENTIIE

Net cash from operating activities

REEBSHR LR

Investing activities

Decrease in short-term bank deposits

Product development costs paid

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

Payment for patents and trademarks

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets

Purchase of available-for-sale investments

BEERE

R ERIRIT RO A

B ERFERA

UNR/E R Y

ENBEYE - #aRRRE
P kn

E S ICEELE PARE

BEYFE

HEME - HBERRE
PSR

& BB EMSHR

BEAHNERE

Net cash (used in) from investing activities

KERS (Prit) SR 238
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2011
HK$'M
AEBETT

(45.6)
(1.4)
7.1

1.0

61.6
36.9

4.9

4.6
10.0

(4.0)

751
(90.2)
12.7

20.0
4.2

12.5
0.7)

33.6
0.1
(19.3)

14.4

84.4
(22.9)
(28.1)

(0.4)

33.8
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ IE%/)ILE%

For the year ended March 31,2012 HHE=ZT——F=A=+—HIFE
2011
HK$'M
BEBET
Financing activities B
Repayment of bank loans EBRITER (506.7)
Acquisition of additional interest 5 — B R E)
in a subsidiary pd’i &) (156.7)
Interest paid ERFE (7.1
Repayment of obligations under finance leases &2 B AR L& (1.2)
Bank loans raised MEBRITER 438.8
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEER S FE (232.9)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERZRRESBE 2 HFHE (184.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYzRekERREER
of the year 517.3
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E RS 7 & 2.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FR7EeNERIIAEER 335.1
Analysis of the balances of cash and RekFERREIEAR
cash equivalents RO
Bank balances and cash RITHMR LR E 340.9
Bank overdrafts |ITHEX (5.8)
335.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended March 31,2012 HE =T ——F=/A=+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are engaged in the design, development, manufacture,
sales and marketing of various consumer electronic products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new and
revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related party disclosures

Amendments to HK (IFRIC)-INT 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement
HK (IFRIC)-INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current or prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 cycle?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets’
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets

and financial liabilities?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and

HKFRS 7 transition disclosures?

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets?

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee benefits?

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate financial statements?

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in associates and joint
ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities®

HK (IFRIC)-INT 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of

a surface mine?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

o v oA W N =

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 amended in
2010 includes the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

° The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities relates to the presentation
of changes in the fair value of a financial liability (designated as
at fair value through profit or loss) attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as at fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for its annual period
beginning April 1, 2015. The directors are in the process of assessing
the impact on application of HKFRS 9 and the directors anticipate that
these amendments to HKFRS 9 will have an impact on classification and
measurement of the Group’s available-for-sale investments and held for
trading investment measured at deemed cost as at March 31, 2012.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and separate
financial statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK (SIC)-INT 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose entities”. HKFRS
10 includes a new definition of control that contains three elements:
(a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex
scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013. Earlier application is permitted provided that all
of these five standards are applied early at the same time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning April 1, 2013 and these five standards is not expected to
have material impact on the results and financial position of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("H KFRSS") (continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all
assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning April
1, 2013 and the application of the new Standard will result in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning April 1, 2013. The presentation of items of other
comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the
amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
("its subsidiaries”). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Revenue from sales of moulds are recognised when the moulds are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset (excluding financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss) is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified
as finance lease) is stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost or fair value less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” from
the requirement to make regular revaluations of the Group's land
and buildings which had been carried at revalued amounts prior to
September 30, 1995, and accordingly no further revaluation of land and
buildings is carried out. Prior to September 30, 1995, the revaluation
increase arising on the revaluation of these assets was credited to the
properties revaluation reserve. Any future decreases in value of these
assets will be dealt with as an expense to the extent that they exceed
the balance, if any, on the properties revaluation reserve relating to
a previous revaluation of the same asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of
the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal
or retirement of the property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Product development costs
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

—  the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale;

— theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

—  how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

—  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for an internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, product
development cost is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, an internally-generated intangible asset
is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets
acquired separately.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic
life.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generated unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s policy on borrowing costs. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets comprise of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments
other than those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, of which interest income is excluded from net gains or losses.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL represents financial assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

If a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available for a financial
asset, the fair value of the financial asset on that date becomes its
deemed cost. The financial asset is subsequently measured at the
deemed cost less any impairment. If a reliable measure becomes
available for a financial asset for which such a measure was previously
not available, the asset is remeasured at fair value, and the difference
between its carrying amount and fair value is recognised in profit or
loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash and trade and other
receivables) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:
o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days or observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of a financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at cost or deemed cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities excluding derivatives

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills payables,
bank loans and bank overdrafts are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivate
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong Dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
April 1, 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the translation reserve.

Share-based payments

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of giving rise to a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. At March
31, 2012, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
HK$88.1 million (2011: HK$132.9 million).

The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of a similar nature and function.
Useful lives may change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, and it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Recoverability of internally generated intangible asset
During the year, management reconsidered the recoverability of its
intangible asset arising from the Group's product development, which is
included in its consolidated statement of financial position at March 31,
2012 at HK$49.2 million (2011: HK$42.4 million). The project continues
to progress in a satisfactory manner, and customer reaction has
reconfirmed management’s previous estimates of anticipated revenues
from the project. However, increased competitor activity has caused
management to reconsider its assumptions regarding future market
share and anticipated margins on these products. Detailed sensitivity
analysis has been carried out and management is confident that the
carrying amount of the asset will be recovered in full, even if returns
are reduced. This situation will be closely monitored, and adjustments
made in future periods, if future market activity indicates that such
adjustments are appropriate.

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
At March 31, 2012, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$33.9 million
(2011: HK$34.1 million). Details of the recoverable amount calculation
are disclosed in note 14.

Income taxes

At March 31, 2012, a deferred tax asset of HK$29.3 million (2011:
HK$30.5 million) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised on tax losses of HK$601.9 million (2011:
HK$524.5 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are less
than expected, a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal
takes place.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. oEER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for goods sold EEBIEASERINATPHEERTE WKIE
by the Group to outside customers, net of discounts and sales related Wz FRIEFEE - TOIBRTI0 R ARRASH E B o & %
taxes. Turnover represents mainly Oregon Scientific branded sales = Z3E Oregon Scientific R IHE ([RIEHE )
(“Branded Sales”) and Original Equipment Manufacturer and Original MRBEREERMRBTREERZHEE (R
Design Manufacturer sales (“OEM/ODM Sales”). BEREERRBREERIHEED -
Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company, MARBESE(AETBEERBAN)ERZEHR
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource EEBRPI RN ERIAAR » SRR
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types iR EGROER - REEME AEEER
of products manufactured and provided. For management purposes, WIBBA T EEHP (RERAEEF RS T EE
the business of the Group is currently organised under the following IR MAAREEKEEDE)E D

operating divisions which represent the major types of products
manufactured by the Group and are also the Group’s operating

segments.
LCD consumer — design, development, manufacture, and RBEET — WA RE2E UK
electronic products sales and marketing of LCD consumer B HEEm HERMBERRZEBET
electronic products BT HEEM
Electronic learning — design, development, manufacture, and BETHEEM — WRERERE - UR
products sales and marketing of electronic HEREERETHE
learning products Em
Telecommunication, — design, development, manufacture, T HIEEEE  — HEr B8 UK
digital media and and sales and marketing of REMETF HEREESH - 85
other customer telecommunication, digital media HEBEM BRERAEMETHE
electronic products and other consumer Em

electronic products
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e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HZ == ’/\ —A=t—HIFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHER @
Segment revenue and results DEWA K EE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REBREEDBIWAREESTWT :

operating and reportable segments:

Tele-
communication,
digital media
LCD and other
consumer Electronic consumer
electronic learning electronic
products products products
B 8B
REBET EF HERHA
ETHEBER HEEM ETHEBER
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBETT BEBET BEBET
Year ended March 31, 2012 BE-E——F
ZA=+—HLFE
Segment revenue ZEBA
Branded sales g HE

OEM/ODM sales

BRI FR
e

Total segment revenue

N ERA LB

Segment profit (loss)

e (B1R)

Unallocated income REED B2 WA

Unallocated expense REDR 2= H

Impairment losses recognised in B iEREI T A
respect of financial instruments ZREEE

Finance costs AR

Loss before taxation BB EE

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A F
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oEER @
Segment revenue and results (continued) 2 EBARER (#)
Tele-
communication,
digital media
LCD and other
consumer Electronic consumer
electronic learning electronic
products products products Total
B - 85
BBEBET BF HE R A
EFHEEM HEEM BTEHEEM k]
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BERET BERET BEBET AEAET
Year ended March 31, 2011 BE-_E——F
ZRA=t—HLEE
Segment revenue WA
Branded sales miEHE 343.1 284.8 163.8 791.7
OEM/ODM sales R BRI RRTRIEEE 515.5 77.0 239.4 831.9
Total segment revenue D EBUR A LB FE 858.6 361.8 403.2 1,623.6
Segment profit (loss) DERF (E5E) 85 (15.1) (7.8) (14.4)
Unallocated income AR DB 2 WA 14
Unallocated expense REDBL 2 T H (6.6)
Impairment losses recognised in EHERM B IE
respect of financial instruments ZREEE (11.2)
Loss on change in fair value of DEABIEEEREZ
financial assets classified as held PR EENTFEBEZS
for trading investment it 7.7)
Finance costs & AR 7.1)
Loss before taxation M RIE R (45.6)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from XS 2 D EBBRARKAINAE P HE B U
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both years. A MER - DERELERNEBERIEE -

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the

BEDHZ GRTBOREMEIME AL E 2 &5t

Group'’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) HEERER - 5 3%F (FE) &S HREIR 2
represents the profit (loss) earned by each segment without allocation wA(EE) BEXYEREBRM B IE ZRER
of impairment losses recognised in respect of financial instruments, loss B SBERREEEREZIBEETEBEED
on change in fair value of financial assets classified as held for trading ZE1E - EEHEARRG 2T - FLAHA -
investment, interest income, unallocated expense such as central RECDTR 2 I A 4R EP 1T ERAK AN K @b B Ak 2N B
administrative cost and finance costs. This is the measure reported D kRAEEFELERREARERD IR
to the Group's chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of FKBRFTEERE 2FTEF -

resource allocation and performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oEER @)
Segment revenue and results (continued) 2 ERAREE (#)
No segment assets and segment liabilities and other segment AR AEEzHEERABEAREMY EHER
information are presented as such amounts are not reviewed by the WAREAEEZ T ZEERRABTHUSEEIR
Group's chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource REHMERRIAEM T XN EHERAEH 2
allocation and performance assessment or otherwise regularly provided BERREAN  MUBEVNDHEERDEFBEIN
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker. REAMDEBERZ DT o
Other segment information Hitb 5 ZBE ¥
Tele-
communication,
digital media
and other
LCD consumer Electronic consumer
electronic learning electronic Segment Unallocated
products products products total items Total
LR (]
HRBER 7 RERHM 3
ETHEER ¥2ER ETHEER PHAE AE2%ER g
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET AEEET BEEET BEEET BEEET BEEET
Year ended March 31, 2012 BE-B-HZASt-ALEFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment AHRFIREEFATIIFE :
profit or loss:
Depreciation and amortisation MERER
— property, plant and equipment — W% BERXE 316 132 132 58.0 27 60.7
— intangible assets —BVEE 69 9.8 5.1 218 - 218
Impairment losses on trade receivables SR ZHESE 0.7 05 0.4 16 - 16
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BERE
and equipment 2 BB (0.2) - 0.1 (0. - (0.1)
Gain on disposal of intangble assets HEEVAE IE (34) - - (34) - (34)
Write down of inventories HAE 20 16 1.1 47 - 47
Year ended March 31, 2011 HE-Z--FZA=t-ALEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment RSB R A THIFE -
profit or loss;
Depreciation and amortisation REREH
— property, plant and equipment — ¥ BERXE 307 130 138 57.5 4.1 616
— intangible assets —BYEE 9.0 104 17,5 369 - 369
Impairment losses on trade receivables BRSO REBE 11 3.1 04 46 - 46
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HEWE « BERFECER 21 18 10 49 - 49
Write down of inventories HaGrs 43 36 21 10.0 - 100

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W IS R A

For the year ended March 31, 2012 # == J HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Asia Pacific, Europe and Americas
(representing the United States of America and Latin America). The
Group carries out its manufacturing and trading operations in Hong
Kong and other parts of the PRC. The Group also operates marketing
offices in Europe, the United States of America, Latin America and other
Asia Pacific countries.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is
presented based on the location of customers are detailed below:

2 EE R @

#h &5 2B

AEEZEBORTARE  BNREMNEEER
BTEMN) - EEBRTELMINE - AEHLE
WERRITE LR  AEBMERN - 8 - 1
TENREMTARBRINRAE IS HEEN SR -

AR ERENRE S 2 Wt YRR P R B
5 FEWT

Revenue from
external customers

Americas E
Europe B
Asia Pacific EEp N

REIFREF 2 Wi
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEHET AEEET
518.7 530.0
731.2 7455
347.2 348.1
1,597.1 1,623.6

Non-current assets of the Group excluding deferred tax assets and
financial instruments are substantially located in the PRC including
Hong Kong.

Information about major customers
The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for both years.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

BWIRIERIBEE RV B TE - XEBZIERD
BEBRBOUNTE(BEEE)

FREFEH
AEBzEPEWRERM  UEE -FPEMREF
EIEAREEKANEBB10% °

HttfrERER

2011
HK$'M
BEBEET
Impairment losses recognised in respect of BERMBEIAZ
financial instruments (note a) BEEE (Fista) (15.8)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant HEWZE  MERFREZ
and equipment Wz (E518) (4.9)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEPEE 2 W -
Change in fair value of financial assets classified PERBIEEREREZ
as held for trading investment VIS EEANTEZEE) (7.7)
Net exchange losses (note b) b B EFE (FEb) (10.8)
(39.2)

Notes:

(a) Included in the impairment loss recognised in respect of financial
instruments are impaired losses on trade receivables of HK$1.6 million
(2011: HK$4.6 million).

(b) Included in the net exchange losses are gain (2011: losses) arising from
changes in fair value of forward contracts of HK$3.3 million (2011:
HK$14.4 million).
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e SRR MIEE

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HZ ==

7.

82

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

ZF=ZA=T—HLFE

7. BRBAIEE

Loss before taxation has been arrived at
after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 8)

Retirement benefits scheme contributions for
other staff, net of forfeited contributions of
HK$1.6 million (2011: HK$0.3 million)

Share option benefits expenses for other staff

BRIATEIEC IR T OIS 1A -

ESES (FzEs)

H B TRMRERTEIME5R - 0k
1.6 B BT 2RISR
(ZZE—F : B¥03BERL)

HE T2 BRIEEMMAX

Salaries for other staff HEI>THE
Other benefits for staff other than directors BESI G BT 7 HMEFR
Other staff costs HAth 8 TAA
Total staff costs BT KAERE
Less: Staff costs capitalised in product B BENMCEERRABRAZ
development costs BT A
Staff costs included in research and TIABMERFMEER 2
development costs BITAA

Amortisation of product development costs
included in research and development costs
Amortisation of patents and trademarks
included in research and development costs
Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised as expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
— held under finance leases
— owned by the Group
Operating lease rentals in respect of
— office equipment and motor vehicles
— rented premises
Write down of inventories (included in cost
of goods sold)

and after crediting to other income:

Interest income
Sales of moulds and scraps

EmFERA 2 #H (5 R R
REEM)

B EER#E (PR R
REER)

ZE A =

BHER /A2 FEKRAR

WE - BERRBZIE
— A BEORAEZEE
—AKBEREERE

TR
—MAERERITE
—HEME

WoRF & (5 R ERKA)

REFFAREMBALT

A EMA
HERANESE

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A F

2011
HK$'M
BEEET

8.6

19.2
1.0
298.7
35

322.4

331.0
(15.6)

(29.6)

285.8

36.2
0.7

4.7
1,080.9

1.3
60.3

0.9
33.0

10.0

1.4
2.4
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. E=EMe2
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 directors of the ENSENTIZ(CE——F : 7TR)ESEFEAL
Company (2011: 7 directors) were as follows: MemT :
Retirement
Basic benefits
salaries and scheme Share-based
Fees allowances contributions payments Total
Exge BHRERE URGAREE
ik §53:4:1 sHEIHR PACEN mm
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS$'M HK$'M
AEEET A¥EEr A¥EErx AERET  A%EER
Year ended March 31, 2012 BE-E——f
ZA=t—-HLEFE
Executive directors: HITEFE -
Dr. Raymond Chan BIEXEL 0.1 3.4 0.2 - 3.7
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley REEL L 0.1 1.6 0.1 - 1.8
Mr. Barry John Buttifant (note) BRR 5 () - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: B IHTEE -
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony BRREE 0.3 - - 0.1 0.4
Mr. Kao Ying Lun mERBEE 0.3 - - 0.1 0.4
Mr. Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli %24 0.3 - - 0.1 0.4
Dr. Kenichi Ohmae RETH—1EL 0.2 - - 0.1 0.3
13 5.0 0.3 0.4 7.0
Note: Resigned on June 30, 2011. Mzt : RZZ2——FRA=+THEHL -
Year ended March 31, 2011 BE-Z——&
ZA=t—-HLEEE
Executive directors: HITEE
Dr. Raymond Chan BREIE+ 0.1 34 0.1 - 3.6
Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley FRénZL 7+ 0.2 1.7 0.1 - 2.0
Mr. Barry John Buttifant (note) WAL E (K 0.1 18 - - 19
Independent non-executive directors: B IEHTEF -
Mr. Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony BRUBLESE 03 _ - _ 0.3
Mr. Kao Ying Lun SRBEE 0.3 - - - 03
Mr. Jack Schmuckli Jack Schmuckli % & 03 - - - 03
Dr. Kenichi Ohmae KETH—1E+ 0.2 - - - 0.2
15 6.9 0.2 - 8.6

Note:  Appointed on July 12, 2010.

None of the directors has waived any emoluments during the year (2011:

nil).
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GABBREME

For the year ended March 31, 2012 E#ZE =% ) F—HA Lk

Xt

9. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 9. EEME
The aggregate emoluments of the five highest individuals included two AR BEEEHMNES EPRE /AR ENT
(2011: two) executive directors of the Company, whose emoluments EE(ZE——%F ML) HBE2 5 XX
are included in note 8 above. The emoluments of the remaining three H8 e Etp—RmmFMATZIEmT

highest paid individuals are as follows:

2011
HK$'M
BEBETT
Basic salaries and allowances EAXHr o KER 7.7
Bonus TE4T 0.2
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IRIKRERT B3R 0.1
8.0

Bonus is determined with reference to the individual performance FR - RKEARBRFELL -

during the year.
The emoluments of the employees were within the following bands: EEZMEEELT :

Number of employees
BEAH

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 75 #51,500,001 JT & 4 %5 2,000,000 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 7515 2,000,001 JTE %5 2,500,000 7T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7515 2,500,001 JT 2 4 %5 3,000,000 7T

2011

w

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the EREEER A£EMEYNMNETFREES
five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an ZMHES (BIEEERES)EAFREMARNEE

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for HIMAB S S BER M N 2 ES -
loss of office.
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e SRR M EE

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIFE
10. TAXATION 10. B\
2011
HK$'M
BEEET
The charge comprises: S HBIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEREMFH
— current year — KEE (3.0)
— overprovision in prior years — A EERERE 2.0
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hith Bl AR = 2 B8
— current year — RrEE (0.8)
(1.8)
Deferred taxation (note 16) RIERIIE (5T 16)
— Current year — NEE 0.2
(1.6)
The charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before taxation as RNEFERIES HEBR T AT BIEHERNT
follows:
2011
HK$'M
BEEET
Loss before taxation KR A 1 (45.6)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax rate of AR FTIS T X 16.5%
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) (ZZ——%F :16.5%)
FTEZRIEE S 7.5
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR S 2 HIEZE
tax purposes (9.2)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes HZER UL A 2 Fi T8 /2 4.7
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REBRMIEERB 2 HIELE (13.3)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REAMRAREE L LB AT
operating in other jurisdictions FIERAHETRz 2 (0.4)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised )& g R EMER 2 FHIBE 12 5.9
Overprovision in prior years N FERERE 2.0
Others Hi 1.2
Tax charge for the year REEHREZL (1.6)
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GABBREME

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HE = ) \ i

X}

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. FiE @)

(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of estimated (@ BBFERIIREF 2T ERB SR L
assessable profits for both years. Taxation arising in other R16.5% 2 TEFE - At A AR 2
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant EiZEERE R 2 BRBIRETE -
jurisdictions.

(b)  Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law") (b) IREB(REARLMBCERBRIE) (FJL
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for B %R/%’J)& EHEAED - BRARAR
the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. BB A R 2 AT %%R%R?D%ZS% o

11. LOSS PER SHARE 11. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to REEARRAEE A EREARREEEHET)
the owners of the Company for the year is based on the following data: BTHEIRAE
2011
HK$'M
BEEET
Loss: &8
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the — RNATEA AFEEERBAGTE
Company and loss for the purposes of basic FBIRERNESZERER
and diluted loss per share (49.6)
2011
Number of ordinary shares: TwRmEs -
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes BT ESRER R EZEE
of basic and diluted loss per share 2 EmIR AR 2 Plpler AR 2,502,271,088

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended March FHEHEE—F=A=t+—RHALRZT——

31, 2012 and 2011 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s FZR=+—HIEMEFEZSREFTRER

outstanding share options as the inclusion of those options would result B - WRERKRRARARZ MARITEBREETE

in decrease in loss per share for both years. MENMEFEZSHERIETEESRRNZ

FHE -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. M5 - HBERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
landand  fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
buildings equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
HELH & BERE
REF HERRE RE ke HEIR k]
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBETL BEBETL BEBET BEBETL BEEET BEBET
COST OR VALUATION BAESREE
At April 1, 2010 RZE-TENA—A 53.0 3226 7.1 294.6 03 677.6
Currency realignment AR - 35 0.1 - - 36
Additions NE - 14.9 0.3 12.6 0.3 28.1
Transfer iz - 0.5 - - (0.5) -
Disposals HE (1.6) (122) (0.4) 2.7 - (16.9)
At March 31, 2011 R-E——E=R=+—-H 514 3293 7.1 304.5 0.1 692.4
Currency realignment EHAZ - 23) 0.1) - - (2.4)
Additions NE - 73 05 8.7 0.1 16.6
Transfer R - 0.2 - - 0.2) -
Disposals & - 33) (2.5 (4.4 - (10.2)
At March 31, 2012 R-E-—%=A=1—-H 514 3312 5.0 308.8 - 696.4
Comprising: BIE
At cost BERAE 16.6 331.2 5.0 308.8 - 661.6
At valuation RHE
—1993 ——NZF 26.7 - - - - 26.7
— 1994 ——NWNEF 8.1 - - - - 8.1
514 3312 5.0 3088 - 696.4
DEPRECIATION TE
At April 1, 2010 W-E-ZEMWA-A 241 2408 55 236.1 - 506.5
Currency realignment EeaE S - 3.1 0.1 - - 32
Provided for the year AEEEE 16 39.2 06 20.2 - 61.6
Eliminated on disposals HERRE (03) (8.6) (0.4) (2.5 - (11.8)
At March 31, 2011 RZE——F=ZA=1—H 25.4 2745 5.8 2538 - 559.5
Currency realignment R - (1.9 0.1) - - (2.0)
Provided for the year KEFEE 04 28.2 07 314 - 60.7
Eliminated on disposals HERIKHE - 3.2) (2.4) 4.3) - 9.9)
At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=ZF=1+-H 25.8 2976 4.0 280.9 - 608.3
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=ZF=1+-H 25.6 336 1.0 27.9 - 88.1
At March 31, 2011 RZE——F=A=+—H 26.0 54.8 13 50.7 0.1 1329
Annual Report 2012 F 3§ IDT International Limited BEEIMRER A 87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
an\ =] /E\ZI-;F% &%M—J

For the year ended March 31, 2012 &%= —= ) i I IEFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

88

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term
the lease, or 25 years

10% — 25%

10% — 20%

10% — 20%

Leasehold land and building

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles
Plant and machinery

The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at
each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for

on a prospective basis.

The carrying values of the Group’s property interests comprise:

M HBRERE@

ME - BBRREHDUNERE - REFTIRFH
SHEITERYE - AR - S 2ERNT

AE+RET FAEHH25F - UK
mERE

BRI HEBRRE 10% —25%

AE 10% —20%

RS B R k2R 10% —20%

BEARFERERFET AR EFFRER - 4
AEBVBRAARIELEAR -

REBZYEEREEERRE

RYMBOREERH
2

Properties held under medium-term leases
in Hong Kong

If the Group’s land and buildings had not been revalued, the carrying
value of land and buildings would have been HK$8.5 million (2011:
HK$8.9 million).

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of furniture,

fixtures and equipment held under finance leases was HK$3.5 million
(2011: HK$5.0 million).

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A F

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HK$'M HK$'M

BEEHET BEEET

26.0

WAKREZ tiREFREER - WREERE

BESEHBIL(ZE——%F  BM89EE)

RBEHMETR  URHBEOFEZGM  KE
HBZEHERBEISHEL(ZZ——F
BHS0ESTT) °
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

13. BPEE

Product
development Patents and
costs trademarks Total
EmbARA EfREE HE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEETT BEEETT BEBETT
COST RSB
At April 1, 2010 R-ZZE—ZFMA—H 403.9 8.8 412.7
Additions NE 229 0.8 23.7
At March 31, 2011 R-_E——F=A=+—H 426.8 9.6 436.4
Additions NE 30.5 6.4 36.9
Disposals HeE (5.3) - (5.3)
At March 31, 2012 R_E——F=A=+—H 452.0 16.0 468.0
AMORTISATION ey
At April 1, 2010 R-ZZE—ZFMA—H 348.2 4.5 352.7
Amortised for the year PINCEYi=E: o 36.2 0.7 36.9
At March 31, 2011 R-E——F=A=+—H 384.4 5.2 389.6
Amortised for the year PN S 19.8 2.0 21.8
Disposals HeE (1.4) - (1.4)
At March 31, 2012 R-ZE——F=A=+—H 402.8 7.2 410.0
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At March 31, 2012 R-_E——F=A=+—H 49.2 8.8 58.0
At March 31, 2011 RZZE—F=A=+—H 42.4 4.4 46.8

The above intangible assets, which have finite useful lives, are amortised
on a straight line basis over the following periods:

Product development cost
Patents and trademarks
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N EERE
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14. GOODWILL 14. B8

HK$'M

AHBET

At April 1, 2010 N—ZF—ZFA—H 33.9
Currency realignment bE 5 R 0.2

At March 31, 2011 WZE——F=A=+—H 34.1
Currency realignment M 34, 8 2 (0.2)

At March 31, 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 33.9

90

For the purpose of impairment review, goodwill set out above is
allocated to two individual cash generating units (“CGUs"”): LCD
consumer electronic products unit and telecommunications products,
digital media products and other consumer electronic products unit.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at March 31, 2012 allocated to

BUBEREME - EIIEEDDETMEELZ
BIREM([BIREMN]) : RRBETEFHEE
u“uﬁﬁ&sauﬂ?uu BERBER RHEMETE

BR_E——FZA=+—HZEEEIET
these units are as follows: ZEBZIERAT

HK$'M
BEBET
LCD consumer electronic products unit (“CGU A”) REBBETNETHBEMRSEMM ([AIREMLR]) 17.6

Telecommunications products, digital media products and EHER BEERERNMEMEFEEER
other consumer electronic products unit (“CGU B") B ([AIRERZ]) 16.3
33.9

During the year ended March 31, 2012, management of the Group
determines that there are no impairments of any of its CGUs containing
goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the CGU A and CGU B have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. The calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management for the next year and for the following four years based
on a steady growth rate of 3% per annum. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using zero growth rate. Management
estimates discount rate of 7% (2011: 6%) for both the CGUs using a
risk-free rate, the market return and company specific factors. The key
assumptions are annual growth rates, estimated future selling prices
and direct costs which are estimated and based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of both CGUs to become less
than the aggregate recoverable amount of respective CGUs.
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BE_Z——H=-A=1t-HULFE r&£EZ
ERERELBRHE AR EMBENRAE -

AR B R EAIREN L 2 ATk e € 5 R ERE
AEEAEEMERT - ZAE LA EASERE
EEEBMZAZRFERAROFENIEBERRNR
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15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 15. AMtHERE

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HKS$'M HK$'M
BEHET BEEET

Unlisted equity securities at cost IE F TR AR E AN 0.9 0.4
The above unlisted investments represent a 2.92% (2011: 1.46%) LA EIE ETIE BN BB 2AATE22.92%
equity investments in a private entity that was established in Korea. ZT——F 1 1.46%) BRAEE c ZEEREUK
They are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting TRERBERFEE B 2 RETE - TR
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so SEATEBEZEERKN  WARAEZTAR/R
significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that FEBESEAR MR -

their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

16. DEFERRED TAXATION 16. ELEBIIE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets TREFIRARESHE BEREHAER R
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior FEREHIEAEEEERAEE)

reporting periods:

Accelerated Product Unrealised

tax development Revaluation profits on
depreciation costs of properties  Taxlosses  inventories Total

i3 ER 2
BEHE RRRA NEER REFE RERER EEx
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

AREEL  ENAET EMBEERL  ENAER  EMBEERL  ERAER

At April 1, 2010 R-Z-ZFMA-A (2.5) (5.1) (5.6) 298 83 249
Currency realignment ERFE - - - 07 - 0.7
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss AEFEREA (k) B

for the year 19 0.2 - - (1.9) 0.2
At March 31, 2011 RZE——F=fA=+—H (0.6) 4.9) (5.6) 30.5 6.4 258
Currency realignment R - - - (0.5 - (0.5)
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss KEERGA (R) B3

for the year 1.5 2.0 - 0.7) (0.5) (1.8)
At March 31, 2012 R-E—-F=A=+—H 0.9 (7.0) (5.6) 293 5.9 235
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GABBREME

For the year ended March 31, 2012 E#ZE =% ) F—HA Lk

Xt

16. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

17.

92

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

16. EZEHE @)

BT R B SR ATAT

EREHRBEE
EERBARE

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BETET BEEETT
26.4 38.9

(2.9) (13.1)

23.5 25.8

By reference to financial budgets, management believes that there will
be sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences available in
the future for the realisation of the deferred tax assets.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses
of HK$779.5 million (2011: HK$709.3 million) available for offsetting
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$177.6 million (2011: HK$184.8 million) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$601.9 million (2011: HK$524.5 million) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses are
losses of HK$6.8 million (2011: HK$16.5 million expire in the years
of 2011 to 2015) that will expire in the years of 2012 to 2015. Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

INVENTORIES

17.

ERE2ERYBRER  HESARAHZRRK
i MR SAS A R By 22 R ] BIRIRIER A

RWEMETR - AEBEE HARBDATARBRE
779588 L(=F——F : B T709.3HET)

AEEHEAREN  EhEB1776B8T(Z
T——F: B 1848 HE L) DA RELENIA

BAE o R ARBEIET R HEF R - 8 B
601 9BE (=2 ——%F : B¥5245F5& L)

Raw materials R
Work in progress &
Finished goods B n

ERABELERBEE - AERFEBEREB

R-E——Z2-_Z—hFHMEE 2 EBEE6.8

BET(ZE—F . BE16588LER =

——FE-_T-AEHMEE) o MR ER
HAgted o

35

3.31.2012 3.31.2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEEER B BHETT

94.5 112.9

9.8 14.7

149.2 168.1

253.5 295.7

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR MYt

For the year ended March 31, 2012 # %

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance
for doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice date at the reporting
date.

o WA R R e Lt LR

RBEEEANRREREZE S RRRTIRE
SAMEIZRESMAOT

3.31.2012 3.31.2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BETET BEBETT

0 to 30 days 0HZ=E30H 109.2 112.8
31 to 90 days 31HZE90H 373 52.5
Over 90 days 90 HIA 12.6 26.9
Trade receivables B S REBIRR 159.1 192.2
Other receivables H{th g e zkoE 56.6 72.4
Total trade and other receivables B 5 M E A R AR AR 215.7 264.6

The Group normally allows credit period of 30 to 60 days to its trade
customers. Customers with long business relationship and strong
financial position are allowed to settle their balances beyond the normal
credit terms up to 90 days.

The Group’s management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
receivables and considers the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired to be of a good credit quality based on the good payment
history of the related debtors from historical experience. Based on
the payment pattern of the customers of the Group, trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired are generally collectible. Included
in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$16.0 million (2011: HK$43.9 million) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the directors assessed that the balances will
be recovered based on their past settlement records. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 36.4 days (2011: 43.2 days).

Annual Report 2012 F 3R
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i B S HR AR P L

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HZ == ) F—RIFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

B Wt B K 2 L 1t P MWRRR IR ()
BRME AR IE 2 E 5K R

Overdue less than 30 days BEA30 AR
Overdue 31 to 90 days #mHEI31 HE90H
Overdue more than 90 days BWHEIO0 B M £

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HKS$'M HK$'M
BEHET BEEET
5.9 223

2.6 2.8

7.5 18.8

16.0 43.9

The Group normally provides fully for all trade receivables overdue
more than 90 days and/or have no material transactions with the Group
during the year because based on historical experiences such receivables
are generally not recoverable, except for some major customers with
longer credit terms at the discretion of senior management.

RFBELER  BH0 B kRN FRNELEE
BEARS Z RURFGBEE BRRME - #Ut A%
Bl TR R BIRERTIEL G  EETEES
BREZIBEFAHEMAEEERERE -

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables: EWBRARERE 2 F) -
2011
HK$'M
BEBEETT
Balance at beginning of the year FHEH 19.0
Impairment losses recognised in respect of BIERERER 2 REEE
trade receivables 4.6
Amount written off as uncollectible ST AT I B 2 FREE (1.3)
Balance at end of the year FIRERR 223

The balance of the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables which have been overdue more than 90 days
and/or have no material transactions with the Group during the year.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

94 IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A F
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e 7J iﬁﬁ&% |3ﬁ
For the year ended March 31, 2012 & & —=
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FEURBR RN & H b FE W FRE ()
Included in trade and other receivables are the following amounts RS R EMERGERETIAEEEEE

denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

B2 EBUIN B EE KA

usD ETT
Renminbi AR
Euro Br7&

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HKS$'M HK$'M
BEHET BEEET
63.7 99.6

0.1 17

0.9 7.0

64.7 108.3

19. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENT

As at March 31, 2012, the Group has an investment in equity securities
listed in Hong Kong which is fully impaired. During the year 2011,
trading in the shares of the listed entity was suspended. At March 31,
2011, the Group recognised a fair value loss of HK$7.7 million based
on the quoted price of the listed security at the date of suspension.

Subsequent to the date of suspension in 2011, the directors considered
that the fair value of the listed security cannot be measured reliably
because it was not apparent in the active market. As a result, the Group
had set the quoted price of the listed security at the date of suspension
as the deemed cost and had measured the investment at cost less
identified impairment losses. At March 31, 2011, the listed security was
under suspension and the resumption conditions were not satisfied.
Accordingly, the directors assessed impairment and recognised an
impairment loss of HK$11.2 million.

At March 31, 2012, the listed security is still under suspension and
the resumption conditions have not been satisfied. Accordingly, the
directors assessed impairment and further recognised an impairment
loss of HK$5.7 million.

Annual Report 2012 F 3R
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an\ =] /E\ZI-;F% &%‘:ZM—J-

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HE=Z ) \ 11

Xt

20. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES

96

AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits bear an average effective interest rate of
1.65% per annum (2011: 0.49% per annum) have an original maturity
of six months (2011: four to six months) and are denominated in
Renminbi (2011: United States Dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
Dollars). As at March 31, 2011, included in the amount was HK$35
million which the Group has undertaken to maintain for a short term
loan facility granted by a bank. As at March 31, 2012, the short-term
loan facility was fully repaid.

Bank balances and cash which comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less are at prevailing market interest rates in the range of 0.1% to 1.65%
(2011: 0.1% to 2.35%) per annum.

Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash
are the following amounts denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

20. EHASRITER BT

TRHBEREE

RERITFER R ERFRE1.65EF 2
ZE——F:0489E) URANEA(ZE——
F:-MEXNMEAIPRAARE (ZT—F:
Ex AREBREIL)FE RZT—F=A
=+—HB HPBEIS0AETALEBENE
Hx%ﬁﬁ?;%tﬂZ%ZHE%*&EEEW;%%&&%Z#IE o
R-TE——F=ZA=+—8B RHYEEFHEE2
HEE -

WITHEBR LB R EAEERBE 2B LR HR
AEF BEGERZREBHAA=@ASIUAT
RBITTISHNEEE  FAENF0I1EZR1.65
B(ZZ——F :01EE235E) -

REIRTT I A R SRTT A 88 R 2 848 T 51 LAAE
BEEEE S AN EBFHEZ IR

usbD E
Renminbi AR
Euro BR7E
GBP e

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HKS$'M HK$'M
BEEHET BEEET
150.1 206.5

54.1 75.0

18.4 7.8

0.1 3.2

222.7 2925

IDT International Limited BEEIFRAR A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

e IR AR AR MY RE

For the year ended March 31,2012 B2 =2 ——F=A=+—HItFE

21. BEANRRREMENREREARERN

RBEMMEHE R 2 EPENEREERANE
52 R AT -

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HKS$'M HK$'M
BEHET BEEET

0 to 30 days
31 to 90 days
Over 90 days

EER) 77.5
48.7 22.6
18.8 14.5

Trade payables
Other payables and accruals

RIBENIERER

101.4 114.6
138.5 158.4

Trade and other payables and accruals

B 5 MEAMENERARIERE BEE 239.9 273.0

Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the

group entities to which they relate:

JRAS RR R B At AN SRR B 4E T LMHE%%I =
B2 EB AN 2 ETHEZ A

usb
Renminbi
Euro
GBP

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET AEHET
324 49.3

37.6 27.0

0.3 2.4

- 0.1

78.8

22. BILLS PAYABLES

The bills payables were aged within 3 months as at March 31, 2011.
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e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HZ == 7\*r*+ H ke

23. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance
leases. The lease term ranges from 2 to 3 years. Interest rates underlying
all obligations under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates

23. BIBEBENER

AEBUMBEOEES TRERRE - HEN
F2E3F - IEMBEOEBS ZAENETINE
BRI W AR ERIEESETSE - BRABEOTR

and range from 3% to 5%. These leases have no terms of renewal or
purchase options and escalation clauses. No arrangements have been

entered into for contingent rental payments.

FERiES

TEEANBEZEERARES Z G -

W LR AR LN AT AR L5 -

Minimum
lease payments

RIEFHELQ K

Present value
of minimum
lease payments

BREHEANRZRE

3.31.2012
HK$'M
BEEHET

3.31.2011
HK$'M
BEBET

3.31.2012 EEECEIPINN
HK$'M HK$'M
LA PN B EET

Amount payable under finance leases: 15 & BF 750 49 FE~f 2 #0%58 -

Within one year —F2ZR
Between one to two years —FEWMFELME
Between two to three years MEE=FZMH

Less: Future finance charges

B R ER

Present value of lease obligations HOBEBZRE
Less: Amount due within one B ER—FRERM

SIANRBEE
2B

year shown under
current liabilities

Amount due after one year

AEBPBROEB 2 R FEBEDARERER
BZBIMSMNE  BEFRAESRENRRS
HZBREMET - NERSBEOEBZ A FE
ERBRZEEERE °

The fair value of the Group’s finance lease obligations determined
based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting
period approximates to their carrying amount.
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W IS R A

For the year ended March 31, 2012 & & =% HIEFE

24. FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 24. ZEHENEE 8&

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HKS$'M HK$'M
BEHET BEEET

Forward foreign exchange contracts IR HRONE & 4V
— Derivative financial assets —TEMBAE -
— Derivative financial liabilities — TEMBaE (12.4)
(12.4)
In the current year, the Group has used currency derivatives to hedge RAFE  AEBUEBITAETARAETEZXR
significant future transactions and cash flows. The Group is a party to a KZGRIBEREBETE I - NEBFT IR Z
variety of foreign currency forward contracts in the management of its EEAGNEAS M\ EIEERER - FIEFR Y TAESE
foreign exchange rate exposures. The instruments entered are primarily B AREB TEMIEHNEEEE -
denominated in the currencies of the Group’s principal markets.
The ranges of the total nominal amounts of the outstanding forward PN 2 (B 5T s T ok B HA 7 3R HROMNE A& B R R %

foreign exchange contracts to which the Group is committed at the end YA AEESENGEENT ¢
of the reporting periods are as follows:

At March 31, 2012 R-BE——HF=H=+—H

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
HESHE EH B Ex

Sell EURO500,000 Range from April 17, 2012 to USD/EURO1.3352
S H 500,000 B2 February 27, 2013 ot/ BiZ&1.3352

—E-——FWOA+ERE
—E-=F_A-++HHE

Buy RMB6,365,000/RMB6,420,000  April 30, 2012 and June 13, 2012 USD/RMB6.30020

= A 6,365,000 AR#E —E-—EWA=tER x7t,/ AR 6.30020
6,420,000 A R # —E——FXA+=H
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24. FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 2. BHEHNEE BFw

(continued)

At March 31, 2011 R-ZB——F=A=+-—8H

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates

HESH Epl= Ex

Sell EURO500,000/EURO 1,000,000  Range from May 20, 2011 to USD/EURO range from 1.4064 to 1.4174
Ji 1 500,000 B Z&,1,000,000 X 7% February 24, 2012 FT/ BIER 1.4064 5 1.4174

—E——FFHA-t+HZE
—E——F - A=+ HHM

Sell GBP300,000/GBP500,000 June 7, 2011 and July 5, 2011 USD/GBP 1.1624 and 1.6117
St 300,000 45,500,000 %8 —T——FRXALAR ET/ 1511624 % 1.6117
—Z——FtAnH
Sell EURO100,000/EUR0O200,000 Monthly from August 16, 2010 to (i) Entity will sell EURO100,000 for USD at
i 100,000 BXZ& 200,000 Bl 2 July 15, 2011 forward rate at 1.34 on settlement date, if
BABRZZT—TFNA+HE spot rate is less than or equals to forward
—E——FtA+HhH rate.

HIREER DN ENIRIFER - FEEN
45 E Bz BIFE = 1.34 15 100,000 B 22 5 1%
BIETT

(i) Entity will sell EURO200,000 for USD at
forward rate of 1.34 on settlement date, if
spot rate is greater than forward rate.
WIREEXRSHNEBRES  BEERKNEEH
1z HAME 21,3418 200,000 0 2 H i@ AZETT ©

(i) Entity will knock-out when In the Money
("ITM") Intrinsic value is greater than or
equals to 0.2.

”‘F‘W(H N NEBESNHER0.2
B e FahEs o
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24. FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(continued)

At March 31, 2011

Notional amount

EESH#E

R-B-——%=A=+-—-H

Maturity
FHA

24. BHENEE BEw

Exchange rates

Ex

Sell EURO200,000/EURO400,000
St i 200,000 BLZ2 400,000 BL 77

Annual Report 2012 F R

Monthly from October 29, 2010 to
September 20, 2011

FAM-T—TFE+A-TIE
EZF——FhAZ=FAH

0

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Entity has no payment obligation if:

—  spot rate is less than the lower barrier
at 1.25; or

—  upper barrier rate at 1.33 is less than
spot rate and knock in rate at 1.36.

BRI ENREE

— BREEXRINTREXR125 3%

— EREX133PRBEERMASE
1360

Entity will sell EURO200,000 for USD at spot
rate +0.03, if lower barrier is less than spot
rate and upper barrier at 1.33.

i TIRE BRI EERT FREES
1.33  BEEASILIEIE %X +0.03 # 200,000
BRI AR

Entity will sell EURO400,000 for USD at 1.33,
if spot rate is greater than knock in rate at
1.36.
HIREEERSGRASEE 136 - BEKRL
1.33 400,000 BA & R ¥ /mZE T ©

Entity will knock-out when ITM Event occurs
for 6 times.

BENFHRESR  BEEE L ES -
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24.

102

FORWARD CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(continued)

At March 31, 2011 R-ZE——%=A=+—H
Notional amount Maturity
HEEHE A

24,

BEHENEE BE@m

Exchange rates

Ex

Sell EURO200,000/EURO400,000 Monthly from October 27, 2010 to

Ji 1 200,000 BX 28,400,000 L 72 September 26, 2011
BABZZT—ZEF+AZ+tH
EZT——FNAZ+H

The above foreign exchange contracts will be settled in net amount on
maturity date.

At March 31, 2012, the fair value of the Group’s currency derivatives
is estimated to be forward contract assets of HK$0.2 million (2011:
forward contract liabilities of HK$12.4 million).

During the year, gain arising from changes in the fair value of the
Group's currency derivatives amounting to HK$3.3 million (2011: losses
arising from changes in fair value of forward contracts amounting to
HK$14.4 million) have been recognised in profit or loss in the year.

IDT International Limited B EEIFRAR A 7

()

(ii)

(iii)

Entity will sell EURO 200,000 for USD at
forward rate at 1.347 on settlement date, if
spot rate is less than or equals to forward rate
at 1.347.

iR EE R DR ENERPESR1.347 - &
BN A AR BRTE % 1,347 1 200,000
BREEHMGET -

Entity will sell EURO400,000 for USD at
forward rate at 1.347 on settlement date, if
spot rate is greater than forward rate at 1.347.
HIREERFHREREER 1347 - BEBR
455 B IR BIE % 1.347 1§ 400,000 BR 72 .
BRETT °

Entity will knock-out when ITM Intrinsic value
is greater or equals to 0.2.
EEAANEEERNIER02  BE/E
LEERBES -

A EINES KRB B RS LAFREEE -

R_T-—F=ZA=+—0 AKREZEEIE

TEREMANEBEZEFATEERE¥2A
,%TE(*T**E EHANAEREB 1248
&) °

FRN AEBEEETATEATEEZES WA
BE3ZEEL(ZT——F  BHANZATE
EEEELSEE144887T) ERAFEZE
ﬁJlEEEA:\ °
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25.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B ¥R AR Y L

For the year ended March 31, 2012 BHE—Z——_F=A=+—HILFE
BANK LOANS/BANK OVERDRAFTS 25. SRITER RITEX
3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEEBT BEBEET
Bank loans RITER 192.0 305.9
Bank overdrafts HITEX - 5.8
311.7
Carrying amount repayable follows*: AEEZRESE
Within one year —FZN 291.9
More than one year but not exceeding LR —FETBE R F
two years 53
More than two years but not exceeding LAMF BT EE R F
five years 8.7
305.9
Comprising: BIE
Amount due within one year shown under o A EREAEZ ER—F
current liabilities WEEIE 291.9
Amount that are not repayable within one AR E B A H B R
year from the end of the reporting period —FREBESHEAIEEK
but containing a repayment on demand 1%‘3&1I R AREBEE)Z
clause (shown under current liabilities) RITERREE 14.0
Total amount shown under current liabilities JERRBEE AR 305.9
Amount shown under non-current liabilities Y AIEREBE 2 FIA -
305.9

* These amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out *

in the loan agreements.

BRMDRBNERBAAZ REEE
E ﬁﬁ?%@i?ﬁ

The bank loans and bank overdrafts are unsecured and denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars, the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. They carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus
1.38% to 2.75% (2011: 0.9% to 2.5%) per annum. The fair value of
the bank loans approximates the corresponding carrying amount.

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest
rates) on the bank loans ranged from 1.40% to 3.82% (2011: 1.09%
to 2.90%) per annum as at March 31, 2012. The bank overdrafts
carried interest rate ranging from 1.17% to 3.68% per annum as at
March 31, 2011.

Annual Report 2012 F 3R

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&f&"‘éﬁ%ﬂﬂwzm;‘%ﬁ%tﬁ
EASEEE 2 NEEEHE - BERITER
RITEZIRBBRIT H%ﬁ%bmssrizjsf
ZE——F09EE25E) 2 EFERHE R
TERZAFEEEMAREZEEERS -

RZZE—=—F=ZA=+—H8 E@RTERZE
BEFIE (MEERETAFE) N F 1,40 EE3.82E
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26.

27.

104

SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
Number of
shares Amount
iidvip 4= &8
HK$'M
BEBET
Authorised: VETERRA -
At April 1, 2010, March 31, 2011 and RZZE-ZTFMA—H -
March 31, 2012 —E——F=A=+—BK
—FT——%=A=+—H
— ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each — EREEEE 0102 iRk G, 3,500,000,000 350.0
— ordinary shares of US$0.10 each — BREEO0.10E T EdkRH 10,000 -
Issued and fully paid: BT RBUBRA
At April 1, 2010, March 31, 2011 and RZE—ZFWMYA—H -
March 31, 2012 ZE——F=ZA=1+—HEK
—E——F=ZA=+—H
— ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each — EREEEL .10 Tz EERG, 2,502,271,088 250.2

No dividend was paid or proposed for both of the years, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Group offers share options to attract, motivate and retain key
employees who contribute to the growth of the Group. At the special
general meeting held on August 28, 2002, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (“2002 IDT International Option Scheme”).

The terms of the option scheme is described below:

2002 IDT International Option Scheme

The 2002 IDT International Option Scheme was adopted on August 28,
2002 and will continue in operation for a maximum of ten years from
such date.

Pursuant to this scheme, the board of directors of the Company
offered to grant options to selected eligible participants, including full-
time employees and full-time executive directors of the Company or
employees or any of its subsidiaries.

At March 31, 2012, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under this scheme was
114,550,000 (2011: 76,456,000), representing 4.6% (2011: 3.1%) of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

IDT International Limited B EEIFRAR A 7
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27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)

The limit on the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2002 IDT International Option Scheme, together with all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 30% of the
number of the Company’s issued shares from time to time. Subject
always to the aforesaid overall 30% limit, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted,
together with all options to be granted under other share option
scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 207,179,540 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
August 28, 2002, the adoption date of the 2002 IDT International
Option Scheme. Such 10% limit may be refreshed or exceeded if
approved by shareholders in general meeting subject always to the
aforesaid overall 30% limit.

The total number of the Company’s shares issued and which may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted to a participant in any
12-month period immediately preceding the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue as at date of such grant.
If the grant of options is offered to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or any of their
respective associates, the total number of the Company’s shares issued
and which may be issued to such participant upon exercise of all
options granted in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of grant shall not exceed 0.1% of the number of shares then in issue
and having an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000.

The subscription price for an option granted under the 2002 IDT
International Option Scheme shall be the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The vesting period of the share option is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercisable period.

An offer for grant of an option under 2002 IDT International Option
Scheme must be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, and
HK$1 is payable as consideration on acceptance. An option shall be
exercisable during the period as determined by the board of directors
of the Company or its authorised committee, which shall commence on
a date after the expiry of a 6-month period after the date of grant and
not exceed 10 years from the date of such grant.
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. BBRESTE @)
2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued) —EE_FEHERBRETS (@)
The movements of share options under the 2002 IDT International —EE_FEHERERETEI T 2 BRENE
Option Scheme during the year ended March 31, 2012 and the BT —HF-A=+—HLEFEZEHBEILK
balances at March 31, 2012 are set out below: REZE—ZF=A=+—BZHE&HAT :
Number of share options
BREHE
Lapsed/ Fair value
Exercise Granted forfeited at date
price Outstanding during during Outstanding of grant
Participants Date of grant  Exercisable period pershare  at4.1.2011 the year theyear at3.31.2012 per share
RZB--% R=B-ZF REHAH
) ~ mA—-A Fm =ZA=1-A Bk
SEE BREBH TRAH E}Hﬁhﬁg HRATE ERBE AW/ HEH I RATHE i\‘ﬁfg
Directors 11.30.2005 12.1.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 9,360,000 - - 9,360,000
2 12.1.2010 12.1.2012-11.30.2020 0.222 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
12.1.2010 12.1.2013-11.30.2020 0.222 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
12.12.2011 12.12.2013 - 11.12.2021 0.104 - 9,000,000 - 9,000,000 0.038
12.12.2011 12.12.2013-11.12.2021 0.104 - 9,000,000 - 9,000,000 0.046
Employees 11.28.2005 11.29.2006 - 11.28.2015 0.548 312,000 - - 312,000
Eg 11.28.2005 11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 2,548,000 - 78,000 2,470,000
11.28.2005 11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 2,236,000 - 78,000 2,158,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2009 - 8.19.2017 0.315 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2010-8.19.2017 0315 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000
1.21.2010 1.21.2012-1.20.2020 0.295 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
1212010 1.21.2013-1.20.2020 0.295 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 -
3.24.2010 3.24.2012 -3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
3.24.2010 3.24.2013-3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
8.24.2010 8.24.2012 - 8.23.2020 0.205 250,000 - 250,000 -
8.24.2010 8.24.2013-8.23.2020 0.205 250,000 - 250,000 -
12.1.2010 12.1.2012-11.30.2020 0.222 20,500,000 - 5,750,000 14,750,000
12.1.2010 12.1.2013 - 11.30.2020 0.222 20,500,000 - 5,750,000 14,750,000
7.7.2011 7.7.2013-7.6.2021 0.184 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.064
7.7.2011 7.7.2014 -7.6.2021 0.184 - 500,000 - 500,000 0.080
12.12.2011 12.12.2013-11.12.2021 0.104 - 19,500,000 2,375,000 17,125,000 0.038
12.12.2011 12.12.2014-11.12.2021 0.104 - 19,500,000 2,375,000 17,125,000 0.046
76,456,000 58,000,000 19,906,000 114,550,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year 16,956,000 39,050,000
RERERAITE
Weighted average
exercise price ~ HK$0.289  HK$0.105  HKS$0.207 ~ HKS0.201
T 50289 0105 EK0207T  AH0.2017T
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)

The movements of share options under the 2002 IDT International
Option Scheme during the year ended March 31, 2011 and the
balances at March 31, 2011 are set out below:

27.

B AR 8l ()
“EE_FERERERESE (@
—ET_FEFHER R T 2 BRERE
Z-T —F=A=t+-ALEEIEHERR
MoT——E=A=+—AZHEEBNOT :

Number of share options

Exercise

EREHE
Lapsed/ Fair value
Granted forfeited at date
price Outstanding during during  Outstanding of grant

Participants Date of grant  Exercisable period pershare  at4.1.2010 the year the year  at3.31.2011 per share
WoE-Tf RZZ—5 RELAH
mA—H ER ZA=+-H sl v
SEE REAH TR AR BRITRE AT FREL KM/ RARITHR AVEE
HK$ HKS
BET BET
Directors 11.30.2005 12.1.2006 - 11.30.2015 0.529 9,360,000 - - 9,360,000
S 12.1.2010 12.1.2012 - 11.30.2020 0.222 - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 0.087
12.1.2010 12.1.2013-11.30.2020 0.222 - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 0.102
Employees 11.28.2005 11.29.2006 - 11.28.2015 0.548 312,000 - - 312,000
EE 11.28.2005 11.29.2007 - 11.28.2015 0.548 3,198,000 - 650,000 2,548,000
11.28.2005 11.29.2008 - 11.28.2015 0.548 2,886,000 - 650,000 2,236,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2009 - 8.19.2017 0.315 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000
8.20.2007 8.20.2010-8.19.2017 0315 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000
3.3.2008 33.2010-3.2.2018 0.310 250,000 - 250,000 -
3.3.2008 33.2011-3.2.2018 0.310 250,000 - 250,000 -
1.15.2010 1.15.2011-1.14.2019 0.169 400,000 - 400,000 -
1.15.2010 1.15.2012-1.14.2019 0.169 400,000 - 400,000 -
1.21.2010 1.21.2012 - 1.20.2020 0.295 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
1.21.2010 1.21.2013-1.20.2020 0.295 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
3.24.2010 3.24.2012 -3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
3.24.2010 3.24.2013-3.23.2020 0.275 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
8.24.2010 8.24.2012 - 8.23.2020 0.205 - 250,000 - 250,000 0.090
8.24.2010 8.24.2013-8.23.2020 0.205 - 250,000 - 250,000 0.096
12.1.2010 12.1.2012-11.30.2020 0.222 - 21,875,000 1,375,000 20,500,000 0.087
12.1.2010 12.1.2013-11.30.2020 0.222 - 21,875,000 1,375,000 20,500,000 0.102
25,556,000 56,250,000 5,350,000 76,456,000
Exercisable at the
end of the year 17,006,000 16,956,000
WEER TR
Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.440 HK$0.222 HK$0.302 HK$0.289
MEFHTER B0 0222 BK03027T EH0.2897T

No share option was exercised during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BTSRRI EE

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HZ == 7\*r*+ H ke

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued)

The Company has used the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the
“Model”) to value the share options granted during the year. The
Model is one of the commonly used models to estimate the fair value BRI BREAFEARGEER - A ERIVAR
of the option. The value of an option varies with different variables of ETEHRENZIEEY - AR 2EE8MEE
certain subjective assumptions. Any change in the variables so adopted ) AR TEEZHEARERIEATE -
may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

27. BRETTE @

“ERCFERERERETE 3
AARERAEHFDREETERN((RERX]) HF
AR BREETHE ZEAREP—ER

Details of the fair values of share options determined at the date of NZEAEERERENRE AR AT EENF

grant using the Model with the inputs are as follows:

& ARFMBANERAT

2012 —EB-CF

Share options granted on July 7, 2011 E-ZE2——S+tPtHREZERE

Share price at grant date EREBEZRE HK$0.177 B%0.177 T
Exercise price IRE HK$0.184 H#0.184 T
Expected volatility TEERR IR 55.44%-60.03%  55.44% % 60.03%
Expected life TEEA R 3-4 years 3Z4%F
Risk-free rate /R FIE 0.65%-1.04% 0.65% £ 1.04%
Expected dividend yield TR B & 0% 0%

Share options granted on December 12, 2011

E-E-—-F+t-A+-BERHZBRE

Share price at grant date EREAZKE HK$0.104 H#0.104 T
Exercise price IRE HK$0.104 H#0.104 T
Expected volatility TRHEIR IR 53.55%-57.17%  53.55% Z£57.17%
Expected life SELEY =R 3-4 years 3Z4F
Risk-free rate B R = 0.43%-0.62% 0.43% Z0.62%
Expected dividend yield TEEARR B % 0% 0%
2011 —T——F

Share options granted on August 24, 2010 E-E-ZFEN\A-TNERE 2 BEIRE

Share price at grant date ERLAZRE HK$0.205 75 0.2057T
Exercise price 1TEE HK$0.205 750,205 7T
Expected volatility FEER IR 61.108%-66.618% 61.108% = 66.618%
Expected life TE,HEE B 3-4 years 3E4F
Risk-free rate R B | 2 0.504%-0.790%  0.504% Z0.790%
Expected dividend yield TEHEHQ $:4 0% 0%
Share options granted on December 1, 2010 E-Z—ZF+ - —HBREZERE

Share price at grant date EREAZRE HK$0.222 E10.222 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.222 150,222 7T
Expected volatility TR 1R 59.348%-60.972% 59.348% % 60.972%
Expected life TEERA A 3-4 years 3EAF
Risk-free rate [ELf& F & 0.828%-1.131%  0.828% £ 1.131%
Expected dividend yield BEREE 0% 0%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR RMIE

n\/-_l_\
For the year ended March 31, 2012 # == J HIEFE
27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 27. BBIRESTE @)
2002 IDT International Option Scheme (continued) —EE_FERBERERETE @
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of TEERE AR ARIRENBE=ENFHESL
the Company's share price over the previous 3 to 4 years. The expected RIBMRE - R PEANEBRERREIRE
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management'’s best BREMERENTEENSE  TERSRITA
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and EZEREMEHORERBT T IURE -
behavioral considerations.
The Group recognised total expense of HK$2.1 million for the year AEBRBE-_ZE——F=-A=-+—HLEFER
ended March 31, 2012 (2011: HK$1.0 million) in relation to share ARAREENEREEREE 2158 T(ZF
options granted by the Company. ——F:BE1.088T) 2B -
28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. EXERERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will REBCEAREREEBRALEEANZMEELR
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to AR FEEE  ARERBLCEBRRAERER
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. AR KR A B HR o ANEE 2 RS ELBE AR o
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
The capital structure of the Group consists of bank loans and equity REBMZEARERFRITEERARREAA
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital EhER(BERETREARER)
and reserves.
The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a AEEERBTHERERERE - ERZBERZ
regular basis. As part of this review, the management of the Group —Hn AEEERBEERERIRARERY
considers the cost of capital and the risks associates with the capital, BB - WEEREUE & e AR E 2 ARG -
and takes appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure.
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. BI%TH
Categories of financial instruments MBI REER
3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BERET BEBET
Financial assets M EE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERMERZE(BEERES N
cash equivalents) £RIRSIER) 623.1
Held for trading investment RIEEBREIRE 5.7
Derivative financial assets MHEMEERE -
Available-for-sale financial assets AL EMBEE 0.4
629.2
Financial liabilities WBaR
Amortised cost =) 470.9
Derivative financial liabilities TEMBAE 124
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, held for trading investment, available-for-sale investments,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bills payables, forward contract assets and liabilities and
bank loans. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The financial instruments are fundamental to the Group’s daily
operations. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

29.

BT A um

MEREEEEBEERBER

REE TEMH T ASERURN R MEIK
A BEEERE ARBERE - BERT
fFak - RITEBRRS - BHRAREBEMNR
B RENRE BHENEERAENREE -
ZEFBTAFBNS AR ERE - TXET
HZEHBETARRER RIAHEZEFR R
ZHE BHEEEENEEZFAR - ARRR
K 18 RO ER B B HE e ©

UBTEAAEERRLENER - EEEEE
R EERZ LM - PARE IR T B R R SREUE 2
B o AEREMES 2 TS AR AREIER
meRks FALEEL) -

Market risk ™5 E R
Currency risk B E g

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
also entered into foreign exchange forward contracts during the year.

The management monitors foreign currency exposures and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities including bank balances and
cash, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities

afE

REBETHBARETINEEE  UBAEH
EAKINERR - AEBEFATNER B TIMNE
EHAH -

EREgEREXARREAFTERKES BT
BEREXER

AEBUNEEEZEREEREK EBERER
TTHREBR IR ® - MEUSRR R B EL A MR R R B e A
FEAREMENFIE - NRERZREENT

Assets

BE

SERPLEPE 3.31.2011 BREERPLEPAR 3.31.2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
CLAEE VA B EET BELHEE P B EET

usb i 32.4 213.8
Renminbi AR 37.6 54.2
Euro &) 78 0.3 . 19.3
GBP B - . 0.1
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2011: 5%)
increase and decrease in the functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2011: 5%)
sensitivity rate represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2011:
5%) change in foreign currency rates. The analysis has excluded USD
denominated monetary items as HKD, the functional currency of the
group entity holding these monetary items, is pegged to USD. The
directors consider that the currency risk in this regard is minimal. A
positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax loss for the year
where functional currency strengthens 5% against the relevant foreign
currency. For a 5% weakening of functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below
would be negative.

29.

BT A um
HEEREEERERECE (&)

s A ()

B (&)

BERE D
TRFAVEAEASEBEYH S EEEEETR I NES
M A RINEFHERRES% (ZE——4F : 5%)
ZHHE o 5% (ZF——F :5%) BMEFEEE
ABHERIBIREINERBRFTFEAOBERE - kR
KEBEHINEERSIE A AL B E) 2 5T - &
EOoMERBRAEMINEEENEEEE TR
FEIR5% (ZT——4F : 5%) MIMNEF T FHEM
EMBRER - ZHMIT T BEIEETTEEZ BB E
B REASRHAUREERHEECSEETR 2K
EEEILEETLEN c EERAHLERIE
BEBRBHTEE - T ERRRWNEEER
BRINEFES% BREFE LR R EEEE
meMSEMREETE 2 NEEE K GHINER
BE5%  #BHEHRHEBEEKESEER ZF
2. MmN RaE -

Effect on post-tax result
for the year
HRBIERE 2T
2011
HK$'M
BEBEET

Renminbi AR
Euro Bx 28
GBP HgE

2.1
0.5
0.1

For the outstanding foreign exchange contracts, if the market bid
forward foreign exchange rate of USD against the relevant currencies
had been 5% higher/lower and other factors remain constant, post-
tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by HK$0.7 million (2011:
post-tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by HK$13.2 million).

In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for reference purpose
and is unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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29.

112

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed primarily to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances, bank overdrafts and bank borrowings
(see notes 20 and 25 for details of these bank balances, bank overdrafts
and bank borrowings). The Group currently does not have policy on
hedging of interest rate risks. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposures and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the
Group's Hong Kong borrowings at variable rates.

The management considers that the fair value interest rate risk on the
obligation under finance lease is insignificant.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for bank loans at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming bank loans at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(2011: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2011: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-
tax loss for the year ended March 31, 2012 would increase/decrease
by HK$0.8 million (2011: post-tax loss increase/decrease by HK$1.3
million). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings.

For bank deposits, no sensitivity analysis is performed as the range of
possible change in interest rates for bank deposits is considered as
insignificant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of

the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

As at March 31, 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure of
Group entities to perform their obligations in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts
are placed in banks with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically bank loans with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. BT A m@m
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEREREREBRERBX®
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBE SRR (8
In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity analysis BN TRAMKNEETERBTAZ RBES
for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have been drawn up e R DERBEFHELEENITE T ELAREL
based on the undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows BENRSFERARBE MR o &M RIE
on derivative financial instruments that settle on a net basis. When the TEE - AIFFEERED2BARSHARLEER
amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined IRATF MW o h R PR TEORI R R B E o ANEEIIR
by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield BENIBRETHNITEMBIANRISD LS
curves existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis - BRERRBENINBMAD THITEMBIA
for the Group's derivative financial instruments are prepared based RensKENEZRE -
on the contractual maturities as the management considers that the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flows of derivatives.
Liquidity and interest risk tables BB & KT FEE R
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Carrying
effective or within 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 1-5years cash flows 3.31.2012
R=%-Zf
METH EERS, Zf@RE A¥E =ZA=t-A
BRA= AR -F -BLF ReREAE AR
% HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
B¥EERT  B¥EER  E%¥EER  BWEER  B¥EER
2012 —E-Cf
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEHKER
Trade and other payables ERETREMERTE - 1421 33 - 145.4 145.4
Bank loans — variable rate RITER— FHH= 246 102.0 - 94.8 196.8 192.0
Obligations under finance leases FIEANES 3.60 0.1 04 0.7 12 11
244.2 37 95.5 3434 3385
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or within 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months to 1year 1-5 years cash flows 3.31.2011
RZT——F
T 3 =fiRZE *¥E ZA=t-A
7k =EARK —fF —ZR%F  ReNELE FHE
% HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
RBEET  E¥EEnr  A¥EER  AMEER  ABEER
2011 —g8--%
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEHEER
Trade and other payables EREZREMEMNTE - 158.9 - - 158.9 158.9
Bills payable [ES - 0.1 - - 0.1 0.1
Bank overdrafts — variable rate RITEY — ZBFIZ 0.05 58 - - 58 58
Bank loans — variable rate BATER — 7% 173 3059 - - 305.9 305.9
Obligations under finance leases BIEANES 3.5 0.1 0.1 0.1 03 02
4708 0.1 0.1 471.0 4709
Derivative settled net RERERLEIfETE
Foreign currency forward contracts INEREAY - 102 22 124 124
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. BT A @)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MRREEREBERBUR (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBE SRR (&)
Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the R ERIERBE DT - BREEREH T ZRITE
“on demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above maturity ROBERITEERSIDRIERI KRR - R
analysis. As at March 31, 2012, the aggregate amount of the bank T——F=ZA=+—8 RTERZREABE
loans amounted to HK$102.0 million (2011: HK$305.9 million). Taking 102088 (ZF——F : BHK3059887T)
into account the Group's financial position, the directors do not believe EZRINAEBZHHRR  EEMHTEERITS
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights Al AT AR REFIA Z KBNS 38 - EE 48
to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that the bank FERTEFRGREEBRZN(ZE——F : f1)
loans will be repaid in four (2011: five) years after the reporting date FRMNE HEREREORNIAZFEMNE
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan H o B - ZEAE RREF S HABE 1057
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash BEL(ZT——F  BE3N3EET) -
outflows will amount to HK$105.7 million (2011: HK$311.3 million).
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than 1to 3 months 1to  Morethan undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
Jill: 337 -8Rz Az 33
ERAZ  OR-fEA =fE8A £ 25 SHEE RERELE kAR
HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
B¥EER BY¥EER E%EER AWEER  BWEER  BWAEER  BE¥EER
2012 —E-Cf
Bank loans PITER 1.86% 225 332 10.5 395 - 105.7 102.0
Weighted
average Total
effective Less than Tto 3 months Tto More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
IET E S EES KR
ERFE  DR-EA =R —F —E0% SREE ReNELE REE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AEEER  EWEErT  B¥EERT  R¥EEr  A¥EEn  E%EEr AYEER
2011 -g--f
Bank loans RITER 1.73% 1157 22.5 65.1 108.0 - 3113 305.9
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
as follows:

o the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices.

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

o the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated using
discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable forward rates
for the remaining duration of the instruments.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximates to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or
liabilities.

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation

techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. BT A um
Fair value (continued) AEEE @&
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated EREUBERRRBERZ AT EENE (F)

statement of financial position (continued)

3.31.2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ E-& EF=H #zE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BY¥EBELT BEEEBExT BYEER BEYEER

Financial assets B EE
Forward contract assets REAWEE - 0.2 - 0.2
3.31.2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— F-& F=H FERE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBETT AKAEBERT A¥EERT BYEET
Financial liabilities g 3=R
Forward contract liabilities REIANAE - 12.4 - 12.4
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in current year. REEWSHE—REE R EHER -
30. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 30. FIBEFERS
During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Group acquired property, R-ZE——F=ZA=+—HILFE KEEFEB
plant and equipment of HK$1.0 million through finance lease SN ZESBE10EB8B T ZYE BER
arrangement. A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BT HRAR MR

v/T\
For the year ended March 31, 2012 HZE—ZT——F = A=+—H 4
31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. BEHNRTH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make RBEHREER - NEBRBE TS &8
the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AR R BARTE O FORIEDT -
operating leases which fall due as follows:
2011
HK$'M
BEBEET
Office equipment and motor vehicles BAEREBERAE
Within one year —FE 7N 0.7
In the second to fifth year inclusive —EhERN(BREEEME) 0.5
1.2
Rented premises HEWME
Within one year —F 27K 22.2
In the second to fifth year inclusive TERFERN(BEEEREME) 27.8
After five years hFR 5.3
55.3
Operating leases relate to office equipment, motor vehicles and rented CERAO AR AERE  AEREEYEZ
premises with lease terms of between 2 to 8 years. The Group does not L BOBMAMENGF - REBNHELEME
have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease BIEREZHEEE -
period.
Certain retail outlets include payment obligations with rentals varied ETEELHE L NFEAE T AHESERAKRAE
with gross revenue. The additional rental payable (contingent rents) is ib BINEREE (KATHE) —RRFE A AR PR H
determined generally by applying pre-determined percentages to future B MEEOLENBRENHANERNESEE
expected sales less the basic rentals of the respective leases. JE °
32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BEARKIE

118

3.31.2012 3.31.2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEHET AEBETT

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of ~ BREEE W « 2N ERE

property, plant and equipment ZEXRESE
— contracted for but not provided in the — BETHER KRR
consolidated financial statements e R

(AN
=A

LURr R e

0.5
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33.

34.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group principally operates defined contribution retirement schemes
for all qualifying employees, including directors. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of independent trustees.

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are
reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF”
Scheme) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. All qualifying
employees are required to participate in the MPF Scheme. Mandatory
benefits are being provided under the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management during the year was as follows:

33.

34,

R RESE

FAEBTZRZEAEAKRERS (BREF)RIE
BHSRNRIBE S - ZAt B2 BEEAREE
BEDRFHE  YRBELEEANESEAEE

RINRIER BB AREERIER GR35
ZUHERAESBI ZHR - EEBEANESEH
AR MRz a8 RIBOR Y 2 B T8 A
VAORVE RS2 8] B 12 JE 1< 2 (R 5RAE o

AEBERBEEZRAERREERLABHNERES
rEI([aEestd]) - EAREREEHEAZM
SBIEDRTE] - HORBIMRFIRERIE AT SR -

AARFEMELR 2 ES APRRTEEZH
RELEBARREBIEIKE - ROFZPEMEL
RIARBRRREBRETEZ —EADEUX
FESEEF AEBERENREAI ZEEEE
RIRERTBIEH PRAER

BEALRS
TEEEAEME
AEEZEBERABHENT :

2011
HK$'M
BEEET

BT
B4 7

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

134
0.3

13.7

The remuneration of key management is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR MY R

For the year ended March 31,2012 2 —Z——F=A=+—HItFEF

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

At March 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s principal subsidiaries, are
all indirectly wholly owned by the Company except Huger Electronics
GmbH which is 99.83% indirectly owned by the Company. Details of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries at March 31, 2012 and 2011 are

35.

FTEHE AT

RZTE—ZFR_FT——F=A=+—HAAR
AISXEMBARYARARMEELZERA
¥ Huger Electronics GmbHE A& A 7] i & # &
99.83% e RZFE-——FR_FE——F=H

as follows: =t+—HZFEBET
2012 2011
-B-C-f —B-—-f
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of OUEIEE Place of of issued
incorporation/ WGIERAEL S incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishmentSSregistered capital S I:-H el I registered capital Principal activities
BEfT BE7
AL/ EERAEE/ EEilEvYe EERAEE
WEARER R E S eS| Ruty BN TERH
LCD consumer electronic products business
BRRRETETHEERER
IDT Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Limited * Singapore $$35,122,525 ENIIEW( $§35,122,525 Investment holding
sk MM W A REBR
35,122,525 35,122,525
Exact-Time Company Limited Hong Kong €725 Hong Kong HK$2 Manufacture of consumer electronic
products and plastic parts and
provision of surface mount
technology assembly services
ERRIFEEERAR B B B BT REBTHEEMREBHMN
RERREE S RMRHS
Cheer Win Electronics (Shenzhen) PRC US$1,700,980 e US$1,700,980 Manufacture and sales of consumer
Co. Ltd. (Note) electronic products
BHET (RN BRAR () HE 1,700,980 %70 [l 1,700980 % 7T BERHESTHBER
Huger Electronics GmbH Germany DIVI3;500,000 €= DM3,500,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
{:E 3,500,0005% QG 3,500,00053% RERAHETHEER
IDT Technology Limited Hong Kong 14725 Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of consumer electronic
products
BRRMERRR £ B BT BHETEEEM
Rich Win Electronics Limited Hong Kong 472 Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of consumer electronic
products
MESEBERAR B B BT BHETEEER

* The Company was delisted in Singapore during February 2011.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEBLARER

Electronic learning products business

ETHBERER

Ming Win Electronics Limited
PHEZERAA

IDT Electronic Products Limited
ERETIXERAA

King Win Electronics Limited

EHEXARLE

e

DT Electronic Products (HK) Limited
(formerly IDT Data System Limited)

BRETIZ(BR)BRLA
(FIBERETXEBRAR)

Telecommunication products business

EREMES

Auto System Technology Limited

ABRREBRAR

Integrated Display Technology
Telecommunications (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (Note)

EREARINBRAT (i)

Super Win Electronics Limited

AREEERAA

IDT Communication Technology Limited

ERAARERAR

Annual Report 2012 F 3R

2012

“E-Cf

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

K%

Hong Kong
£
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
&R
Hong Kong

R

Hong Kong
R

PRC

H
Hong Kong
A
Hong Kong

R

Nominal value

of issued
ordinary share/
registered capital
BEf
EERHEE/
AMER

HK$20
AR

RMB11,000,000

AR% 11,000,000

HKS2
BB
HK$2

¥

For the year ended March 31, 2012 E#Z= =%

ZF=ZA=T—HIEFE

35. FEMNEB AR @)

2011
—B2-—-f
Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
establishment registered capital Principal activities
BE7
HEMEL/ EERGEE/
RIS BN TEEH
Hong Kong HK$2 Manufacture of consumer electronic
products
ik B¥T HESTHEEEM
Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of consumer electronic
products
ik BELT BHETHEEM
Hong Kong HK$20 Manufacture of consumer electronic
products
&k A% HEETHEEM
Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of consumer electronic
products
ik B¥T BHETEEEM
Hong Kong HK$20 Manufacture of consumer electronic
products
ik A% HETTEEER
PRC RMB11,000,000 Manufacture and sales of
telecommunication products
P AR 11,000,000 BUEREETNER
Hong Kong HK$2 Manufacture of telecommunication
products
ik BELT HERHER
Hong Kong HK$2 Trading of telecommunication
products
ik BT BHENER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR MY R

ZF=ZA=T—HLFE

o

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HZ ==

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

122

Name of subsidiary

WEBLARER

Telecommunication products business
(continued)

ERERER ()

Tekcom Industries Limited

B2 (EH) IEARAF

Sales and distribution business

HERDHEH

Oregon Scientific Australia Pty Limited

Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda

Oregon Scientific (Deutschland) GmbH

Oregon Scientific France S.AR.L.

Oregon Scientific Global Distribution Limited

BAESRRARATF

Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Limited

BALEEERAT

IDT International Limited B EEIFRAR A 7

2012

“B5-Cf

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

K%

Hong Kong

R

Australia

Germany

France

HE

Hong Kong

R

Hong Kong

A

Nominal value

of issued
ordinary share/
registered capital
BEf
EERGEER/
AMER

HK$10,000

% %10,000 70

A$6,010,000
6,010,000 27
BRL11,332,974

11,332,974 B

DM2,550,000
2,550,000 5%
EUR3,500,000
3,500,000 E(&

HKS2
B¥IT
HK$500,000

71 500,000 7T

35. FEMEB AT @)

2011
—B-—-f
Nominal value
Place of of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
establishment registered capital Principal activities
BE7
AL/ EBRGEE/
RIS Bl TEXH
Hong Kong HK$10,000 Trading of telecommunication
products
Bk 10,0007 BREAER
Australia A$6,010,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
EN 6,010,000 27 RERAHETHBER
Brazil BRL11,332,974 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
i 1332974558 EBRAHETHEER
Germany DM2,550,000 Marketing and distribution
consumer electronic products
26 2,550,000 5% EBRAHETHEER
France EUR3,500,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
i 3,500,000 81 EBERDHETHEER
Hong Kong HK$2 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
ik BELT RERAHETHBER
Hong Kong HK$500,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
Bk H%500,0007 REROHETHBER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M EE

For the year ended March 31, 2012 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIFE
35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. FEMBA R @
2012 2011
ZB-Cf —E2--F
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of WU Place of of issued
incorporation/ WGEREES  incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary CEL S EEEEETE R establishment registered capital Principal activities
BEfT BE7
#MRL/ LERNEE/ LIV EERAEE
WEARER b3 Sl R BN TEEH
Sales and distribution business (continued)
HERIHER(B)
Oregon Scientific Ibérica, S.A. EUR300,000 NI EUR300,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
300,005 [EBL¥S 300,000E4 % EBERAHETHEER
Oregon Scientific Italia S.p.A. VR [taly EUR2,156,000 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
2,156,005 % [B-vN 2,156,000 EERAHETHEER
Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited United Kingdom LRI United Kingdom GBP2,400,002 Marketing and distribution of
consumer electronic products
#E 2,400,002 G 2,400,002 548 EERDHETHEER
Oregon Scientific, Inc. United States of USRI United States of US$2,060,000 Marketing and distribution of
America America consumer electronic products
%H 2,060,000%7 [ESE 2,060,000%7 EERDHETHEER
Oregon Scientific Enterprise (Shanghai) PRC US$2,440,000 i@ US$2,440,000 Marketing and distribution of
Company Limited (Note) consumer electronic products
BRSES(LE)ERAR (M) Ei 2,040,000% 7 [ 2,440,000% 7T EBERDHETHEER
Oregon Scientific Trading (Beijing) US$900,000 [xe US$900,000 Marketing and distribution of
Company Limited (Note) consumer electronic products
FRDHEE (LR ARAA (M) £ 900,000 %7 [ 900,000%7T RERAHETHBER
Oregon Scientific (Guangzhou) HK$2,300,000 e HK$2,000,000 Marketing and distribution of
Trading Co., Ltd (Note) consumer electronic products
BMTERBAERE S ERAR (Fiz) £ 2,300,000 [l 712,000,0007 KERAHETHBER
DT (Japan) Limited JPY30,000,000 TN JPY30,000,000 Trading of consumer electronic
products
30,000,000 E RN 30,000,000 5 BHETHEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR MY R

For thoycaromd(}( March 31,202 HE=ZZ——F=A=+—Ht*
35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. XEME QT @
2012 2011
ZB-Cf ZB—-F
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of WUEIEE Place of of issued
incorporation/ WGEREIES  incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishmentSregistered capital S I:-H el IHTL registered capital Principal activities
BEfT BE7
EMAL/ EERAEE/ BEilEvYe EERAEE
WEARER R GESA WzARE Bl TEXH
Corporate
NCES
Integrated Display Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 R lIVE Y HK$6,000,000 Provision of group administrative
services
ERMAARAR ; 76,000,000 ST 751 6,000,0007C REEETHRE
IDT Electronic Technology (Shenzhen) USD6,300,000 JEi@ UsD6,300,000 Provision of group research and
Company Limited (Note) development services
EBRETREORINBEAR (M) il 6,300,000%7 [k 6,300,000 7T RUEEEHE RAERE
IDT Technology Development (Shenzhen) US$420,000 e US$420,000 Provision of group research and
Company Limited (Note) development services
ERMREE R BRAR () G 420,000%7 [k 420,000% 7T REEEMERAL RS

Note: These are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC.

Except for Exact-Time Company Limited, King Win Electronics Limited,
Ming Win Electronics Limited and Super Win Electronics Limited which
operate in the PRC and the investment holding companies which have
no definite place of operation, all of the above subsidiaries operate
principally in their respective place of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end
of the reporting period, or at any time during the year.
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Offices and Facilities

Hong Kong Headquarters
IDT International Limited
Integrated Display Technology Limited
Block C, 9/F., Kaiser Estate,
41 Man Yue Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Tel: 852 2764 7873

Fax: 852 2765 6620

Email: idthk@idthk.com
Website: www.idthk.com

PRC manufacturing facilities
IDT R&D Centre

Chentian Industrial Estate,
Xixiang, Bao An,

Shenzhen, PRC

Tel: 86 755 2970 1188

Fax: 86 755 2970 9025

EUROPE

Oregon Scientific Italia S.p.A.
Centro Direzionale Colleoni, Palazzo
Taurus 2, Viale Colleoni, 3

20864 Agrate Brianza (MB), Italy
Tel: 39 039 656 181

Fax: 39 039643 3111

Email: info@oregonscientific.it
Website: www.oregonscientific.it

Oregon Scientific Ibérica S.A.
C\ Zurbano, 45, First Floor,

28010 Madrid, Spain

Tel: 34 91 650 3795

Email: sales@oregonscientific.es
Website: www.oregonscientific.es

Oregon Scientific (U.K.) Limited
Unit 1, The Switchback,

Gardner Road, Maidenhead,
Berkshire SL6 7RJ, UK

Tel: 44 1 628 580 154

Fax: 44 1 628 634 981

Email: enquiries@oregonuk.com
Website: www.oregonscientific.co.uk

Oregon Scientific France S.A.R.L.
3 Rue Jesse Owens,

93210 La Plaine,

Saint Denis, France

Tel: 33 1 5593 2679

Fax: 33 1 5593 2699

Email: info@oregonscientific.fr
Website: www.oregonscientific.fr

Oregon Scientific (Deutschland) GmbH
Huger Electronics GmbH

SiemensstraBe 3,

63263 Neu-Isenburg,

Germany

Tel: 49 6102 7985 388

Fax: 49 6102 7985 389

Email: info@oregonscientific.de

Website: www.oregonscientific.de

NORTH AMERICA

Oregon Scientific, Inc.
Portland Office

19861 SW 95th Avenue,
Tualatin, Oregon 97062, USA
Tel: 1 503 783 5100

Fax: 1 503 691 6208

Email: info@oscientific.com
Website: us.oregonscientific.com

Oregon Scientific, Inc.
Massachusetts Office

142-F North Road, Suite 175, Sudbury
MA 01801, USA

Tel: 1 508 475 0030

Fax: 1978 254 5711

Email: info@oscientific.com

Website: us.oregonscientific.com

LATIN AMERICA

Oregon Scientific Brasil Limitada
Av. Ibirapuera, 2.907-

sl. 1614/1615/1616,

Bourbon Convention - Ed.
Commercial State - Moema,

Sao Paulo-SP CEP 04029-200,
Brazil

Tel: 55 11 5091 6720

Fax: 55 11 5091 6711

Email: osb@oregonscientific.com.br
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.br

ASIA PACIFIC

Oregon Scientific Global Distribution

Limited

Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Limited

Block C, 9/F., Kaiser Estate,

41 Man Yue Street,

Hunghom, Kowloon,Hong Kong

Tel: 852 2303 1889

Fax: 852 2765 7435

Email: info@oregonscientific.com

Website: www.oregonscientific.com.hk
www.oregonscientific.com

Oregon Scientific Enterprise (Shanghai)
Limited

(Officially known as BXpaas & 5 (L))
ERRAR])

18F, Harbour Ring Huangpu Centre,
No. 98 Liu He Road,

Shanghai 200001, PRC

Tel: 86 21 6350 7072

Fax: 86 21 6350 7074

Email: enquiry@oregonscientific.com.cn
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.cn

Oregon Scientific Trading (Beijing) Co., Ltd
(Officially known as B{7a25 & 5 (4t )
ARAT])

Room 1902 Building 10, Jianwai SOHO,
39 East 3rd-Ring Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing 100022, PRC

Tel: 86 10 5869 9065

Fax: 86 10 5869 9095

Email: enquiry@oregonscientific.com.cn
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.cn

Oregon Scientific (Guangzhou)
Trading Co., Ltd.

(Officially known as & /I 1 & B B Fa g2
BHAEBRRA)

Unit C, 21F FengXing Plaza,

No. 240 Tianhe Road, Guangzhou

Tel: 86 20 8550 9437

Fax: 86 20 8550 9437

Email: enquiry@oregonscientific.com.cn
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.cn

Oregon Scientific Australia Pty Limited
The Coach House,

85 George Street,

Parramatta, NSW 2150

Australia

Tel: 61 2 8297 4700

Fax: 61 2 9262 2700

Email: info@oregonscientific.com.au
Website: www.oregonscientific.com.au

Oregon Scientific (Japan) Limited
IDT (Japan) Limited

8/F., UM Building, 1-14-5,
Higashi-Ueno,

Taito-ku, Tokyo 110-0015, Japan
Tel: 81 3 3837 3791

Fax: 81 3 3837 3980

Email: general@idtj.co.jp

Website: www.oregonscientific.com
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